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THE _COURT: The Court is going to call as the
first érraignment Case Number 02-KR-141 in the matter
of the State of Mississippli versus Jeffrey Keith
Havard.

Would you come forward and be sworn please?

{Mr. Clark, Mr. Sermos, and the defendant approach.bench.}

JEFFREY KEITH HAVARD, having been duly and legally sworn

by the Clerk, answered questions on his oath as follows,

to-wit:
THE COURT:

Q. Your Full name is Jeffrey Keith Havard?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right, Mr. Havard, you’ve been indicted by the
Adams County Grand Jury on a charge of Capital Murder. Mr.
Clark, I believe you were appointed in the lower court to
represent Mr. Havard; is that correct?

MER. CLAREK: Yes, sir, that’s correct, Your
Honor.

TEE COURT:
‘ Q. Mr. Havard, do you have the money or funds to hire an
attorney to represent you?

A. No, sir.

THE COURT: Let the record show that the Court
finds that the defendant is indigent. The Court is
going to confirm the previous éppointment of the
Honorable Robert Clark.

Also, due to the pature of this case that it is
Capital Murder and would be subject to a potential

penalty of death by lethal injection, the Court is

)



TN
/

LASER BOKDFORMA @) PENGAD + 1.500-021-5088 » ww.prbeiged com

10
11
iz
13
14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

=

* N
ALLaJ_quuu—l[L_

going to appoint another atﬁorney to assist in the
representation of this defendant, specifically one
who the Court is familiar with who has experience in
this area. The Court is going to appoint the
Honorable Gus Sermos also as additional counsel.

Both of said attorneys will be appointed to represent
this defendant in the Circuit Court of Adams County
until further oxrder.

All right now, first of all let the record show
that this defendant has received a copy of the
indictment; he’s been served with a copy of the
indictment prior to this arraignment.

Q. Mr. Havard at this time the Court is going to read for
you the indictment: "The indictment of the Adams County Grand
Jury charges that Jeffrey Keith Havard, late of the county
aforesaid, in said county on or about the 21lst day of February,
2002, did wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously kill and murder
one Chloe Madison Britt, a humén being, with oxr without design
to effect death while engaged in the commission of the crime of
Sexual Battery on/or Felonious Abuse and/or Battery of a Child
in violation of Subsection 2 of Section 97-35-39, contrary to
the form of the statute in such cases made and provided against
the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi. It’s a
charge of Capital Murder.®

All right, does the defendant enter a plea of not guilty
to this charge?

- MR. CLARK: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Let the record show that a plea of

not guilty will be entered in this matter.
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it for trial starting on Monday, October the 28th.
That will be the trial date in this case, Monday,
October 28th, 2002, at 9:00 o’clock a.m. That’'s the
last Monday of October.

The Court is going to also allow a reasonable
period of time to file any and all motions in this
matter. The Court will allow up to sixty days from
date to file any and.all necessary:motions in this
matter. The Court will further order -- it will be a
standard order in all these arraignments -- that any
motion not filed and scheduled for hearing with the
Court within ten days prior to trial will be deemed
to have been abandoned.

But that’s going to be the order of the Court.
A plea of not guilty will be entered. It will be
continued and set for trial starting on Monday,
October 28, 2002, at 9:00 o’clock a.m.

Due to the nature of this charge, the Court is
going to order that the defendant continue to be held
without bond in this case.

You’ll be committed back to the custody of the

‘Sheriff of Adams County.

Mr. Clark and Mr. Sermos, the Court will be
available to hear motions whenever you get ready to
have those heard.

MR. CLARK: Yes, sir, thank, you.

MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

The Court is going to continue this case and set (-'

“
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COURT REPORTER’S CERTIFICATE

I, Judith W. Brown, Official Court Reporter for the Sixth
Circuit Court District of Mississippi, do hereby certify that
to the best of my skill and ability I have reported the
proceedings had and done in a hearing for appointment of
attorneys and arraignment in STATE OF MISSISSIPRPI VERSUS
JEFFREY KEITH HAVARD, being Cause Number 02-KR-0141 on the
docket of Adams County, Mississippi, and that the above and
foregoing five (5) pages contain a true, full, and correct
transcript of my stenographic notes and tape taken in said
proceedings.

This is to further certify that I have this date filed the
original and one copy of said transcript with the Clerk of the
Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi, and have notified
the attorneys of rébord, the Circuit Clerk, and the Supreme
Court Clerk of my actions herein.

I do further certify that my certificate annexed hereto
applies only to the original and certified transcript. The
undersigned assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any

reproduced copies not made under my control or direction.

This the day of &%ﬁaifl , 2003.
W/ﬂ. Phten

JudAth W. Brown, CSR 1015
Official Court Reporter
Sixth Circuit Court District

48 Melanie Road
Natchez, MS 39120
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BY THE COURT: The Court is going to call
Case Number 02-KR-141 in the matter of the State of
Migsissippi versus Jeffrey Keith Havard. Let the
record show that there have been a number of motions
filed by the defense in this case that were noticed
for hearing this morning which the Court is going to
take up. Preliminarily before we get to that point,
the Court would note that it has received
correspondence of counsel for the defendant
concerning the privacy of their meetings at the jail
with the defendant. The Court is going to order that
pursuant to law that the Adams County Sheriff‘s
office provide a private environment, place. It
could be a small closest or whatever to meet with the
defendant, but without guestion, under the law, the
defense counsel is entitled to meet with the
defeﬁdant in a private setting, and I don't know what
the set up is now, but clearly I know there is
certainly rooms thaE this can be done and
accomplished. So that's going to be the order of the
court. All right. The first motion --

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: There's a lot of these motions.
S50 we'll take these one at the time. The first
motion is to preclude the State from introducing
victim's impact statement. You may proceed with that
motion.

_BY‘MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, in this motion what

we're obviously getting at in a filed motion is
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during the trial of this as far as the guilt phase,

we do not want to have any victim impact evidence,

-and we realize in this case that the main victim is

the deceased infant, but as far as any evidence to
come in from other persons during the guilt phase
about how that loss has affected his or her life or
anything like that. And we just don't see that there
is any reason or relevance for any of that type of
information during the phase of this trial, the guilt
phase, where the jury needs to listen and pay
attention to evidence regarding whethexr or nqt the
defendant committed the act that he's charged with.

BY THE COURT: So this is limited to what's
referred to as the guilt phase?

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: What says the State? .

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, when the State
received a motion, we didn't know that it was limited
to the guilt phase. So our response --

BY MR. SERMOS: Well --

BY THE COURT: "It was hard for me to ascertain
that also. -

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: The State is clearly
permitted -- I'll go ahead and address that. The
State is clearly permitted under Hanson and under
Statute 99-19-157 to introduce victim impact during
the sentencing phase. The State would certainly
abide by the rules of evidence during the guilt

phase, and we would understand the limitations we

[N T PR
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Motions 9-5-02
have in introducing irrelevant impact evidence for
the guilt phase.

BY THE COURT: The Court is going to grant this
motion in principle. As I read the motion, what is
commonly known as victim impact evidence would have
very little relévance, if any, in the guilt phase,
and, therefore, the motion will be granted with
reserving the right to revisit this if therxe's
something unusuval, but generally this would not be
permigsible in the guilt phase of the trial.

BY THE COURT: The ﬁext motion is motion for
twenty-four hour cooling off period between
conclusion of the guilt phase and the start of any
sentencing phase of the trial.

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, sir. Your Honor, as to
this motion, we would state that -- and it's
certainly up to.the Court's discretion, and we
realize the Court has many considerations._ Howeverx,
during this circumstance, we feel that there should-
be a time for, as the motion states, for cooling off
or thought by the jurors to pause between the time
they enter a verdict. In this case, it would
obviocusly have to be a verdict of guilty to some
charge or as charged before the sentencing phase
started. One reason.would, number one, to give the
defense time to prepare any last minute items for
mitigation, and, additicnally, we feel that system
would allow the jury to have a time of reflection and

not just go straight into a sentencing phase while
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Motions 9-5-02 9

they were in -- shall we say in the heat of thought
of just having a guilty verdict.

BY THE COURT: Is counsel aware of any case in
the State of Mississippi where a death penalty or any
sentence has been set aside for failure of the Court
to allow such a twenty-four hour cooling off period?

BY MR. SERMOS: No, Your Honor. I am not.

BY THE COURT: Does the State have any response
to that?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: The State would agree with
the counsel for the defendant only inscofar as this
matter is within the discretion of the Court, and we
think the Court is amply able to determine when to
start the various phases of the trial.

BY THE COURT: To the extent this motiom is
asking the Court to order that there be a twenty-four
hour cooling off period, the Court is going to deny
that motion. The Court will handle this matter as it
deems appropriate at the time. Clearly, if there
igs -- it depends on the circumstances of where we're
at in the case. In the event that the defendant is
found guilty of the crime, and it's going to be
necessary to proceed with a sentencing phase.
Clearly; under the law, this has to be the same
finder of fact. Also there will be clearly
sequestration of the jury. That's one of the
considerations. If the guilt phase ends with a
verdict against the defendant near the end of the

weekend, that's vexry clearly -- may be more than

-
etk
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Motions 9-5-02 10

twenty-four hours, but the Court clearly has to have
the discretion to make that call at the time. So
this will be denied to the extent that it asked the
Court to order that there be a required‘twenty-four
hour cooling off periocd before we ever Qet to that
point. All right. The next motion is demand for
victim impact notice.

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. What we're
asking foxr here, we're asking the Court te instruct
the district attorney that any victim ihpact evidence
that is to be introduced that we have notification in
advance of what that evidence would be.

BY THE COURT: I perceive this is a discovery
request. Does the State have any copposition to this
motion?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: No, Your Honor. And we
would just reguest that it certainly be made
reciprocal.

BY THE COURT: That it be made what?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Made reciprocal in terms of
mitigation. . |

BY THE COURT: Certainly. This is a discovery
type motion. The Court will grant this motion for
victim impact notice, but the Court will ndte that
there are a number of discovefy requests, and very
clearly under the law, this calls for reciprocal
discovery by the defense. So I want to caution
counsel that failure to abide by that, will endangex

any evidence that the defense may seek to use without

U P
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proper notice to the State also.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor. We
undexrstand.

BY THE COURT: The next motion that has been
filed is motion to limit the number of uniform
officers in the courtroom. Let the record show that
the Court has reviewed this motion and the
authorities cited. Again; the Court will take this
up at the time of the trial. I will resexrve the
right on the Court's own initiative to limit this or
at the request at any time of the defense counsel to
do this, but to order a set number or do anything at
this point would be premature. So essentially, I'1ll

take this wotion under advisement, and we'll address

-1t as reqguested by defense counsel or on the Court's

own initiative if I gee that thexe is a problem ﬁith-
this situation.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The next motion is to enjoin the
victim'g family and frieﬁds from sitting directly
before the jury and showing emotion in the courtroom
during the trial. Let the record show that the Court
has reviewed this motion. This is a very cleaxr --
fairly clear body of law. Firast of all, there are no
seating, as such, directly in fronﬁ of jury. They'll
be allowed to sit Jjust like anyone else in the
courtroom as long as they get there and take up their
seat, There will be no resexved seats in the

courtroom for defendant's family, victim's family, or

B S o)
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anyone else. It's first come, first serve seating.
As with all the situations, there will be no -- the
Court cannot allow shows of emotion in the courtroom
such as could influence the jury, and the Court as it
does in all the cases will deal with that if and when
that situation arises. 8o that will be the Court's
ruling on that, and the Court will enforce this if it
becomes necessary during the trial.
BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The next motion is a motion to
,adjourn at a xeasonable time. The Court has reviewed
this motion and authorities, and it's not necessary
to hear any argument from either side. Again, this
is something fhat comes within the sole discretion of
the Court. Again, the Court is trying to conduct the
court's business with a trial. T will certainly hear

from either side during the course of the trial at
any time asg to what's reascnable ag far as
- adjournment, but very clearly,-this is something that
the Court has to have the right to determine at what
time we will recess each day, and that will be done,
given due consideration to the matters that are set
out in the wmotion. So essentially, I'11 take that
under advisement also to be enforced at the trial.
BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY TBE COURT: The next motion is a motion to
invoke the rule prior to voir dire and to enjoin the
district attorney from advising the witnesses of

previous testimony. It's not necessary to proceed

12
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with a hearing on this. That will be granted. 1t
will be noted that the rule will be inveoked in the
case. Well, this will essentially be -- it states
prioxr to veir dire. So neither side should be
allowed to have their witnesses in the courtroom once
we start with the voir dire and the opening
statements unless there is a reason for it at which
time the Court may direct. Sometimes the Court likes
for the witnesses to be there on voir dire so that
gomeone can see the individual to see if they know
them. 8o that will be granted and will be noted that
the rule is being invoked ahead of time. Also, Mr.
Rosenblatt,.y'all are not out to be running out and
telling the other witnessges what the witnesses said
in the courtfoom. We're not going to have any of
that.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Certainly be --

BY THE COURT: That's a ruie of court with all.
Once the rule is invoked, that applies to both sides
about anybody telling the witnesses what they -- what
other ﬁitnesses say in the courtroom. That will be
granted.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank vou, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right. Motion to exclude
evidence of prior bad acts. You may proceed with
this motion.

BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, obviously, the
motion, we would understand thdt the rules of

evidence obviously apply in all these things, and to
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our knowledge, Your Honor, there's -- really the only
prior bad act is a misdemeanor, and I would ask the
State -- this is obviously under the discovery rules.
I realize that, but I would ask the State with the
Court's permission if the State knows of any other
charges or convictions that Mr. Havard has in the
past. Mr. Rosenblatt, do you know of any other than
the misdemeancr two or three years. Alleged
misdemeanor?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, with regard to
the motion, the State would assure the Court that it
will abide by the rules of evidence such as 404 B.
The motion alleges no particular act in guestion.
It's not our intent to try this case on prior bad
acts, and we will éertainly supply Tull discovery
with regard to any --

BY THE COURT: All right.

RY MR. ROSENBLATT: -- such acts. Ang, of
courzse, the rule is not to limited prior convictions.

BY THE COURT: That's correct.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I am not aware at this time
of any such evidence that we would introduce.

BY THE COURT: All right. PFirst of all, the
State has no prior convictions that it seeks to use
for general impeachment purposes in the event the
defendant takes the witness stand and testifies?

'BY MR. ROSENBLATT: That's my understanding.

BY THE COURT: All right. Now, the Court would

requiré that if the State does intend to use any such

14
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evidence of any prior acts that it notify the defense
of such in an ample period of time for the Court to
take this up at a further hearing. Sco, in other
words, if the defense receives no notice of such,
then you can rest assured that will not be used or
will not be allowed to use that at trial.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right. The next motion is
motion for special venire. That is a right that the
defendant has. So that will be noted that the
defense has requested a special venire. Now, the
Court has zreviewed all the motions filed, and I note
that there is no motion for a change of venue. 1It's
this Cburt's understanding that the defense does not
intend to file a motion for change of venue.

BY MR. SERM0OS: That is coxrrect, Your Honor.

We do not intend to file a motion for a change of
vénue.

BY THE COURT: Mr. Havard, you're here present.
You're hearing all this. Have your attorneys spoken
with you about this because this is a kind of a
critical --

BY THE DEFENDANT; Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: -- matter, and they have
conferred with you about this?

BY THE DEFENDANT: Right.

BY THE COURT: Is that your desire also?

BRY THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

BY THE COQURT: Let the record show that a

o et ek e




LASERBOND FORMA (B PENGAD +1.500-5 15967 » waw.Dsngad com

Pt

1o

11

12

13

14

15

is6
17
18
i9
20
21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Motions 9-5-02 16

special venire will be allowed, will be granted as
provided by law and is requested by the defense. All
right. The next motion is a motion in limine. As I
undexrstand this motion, this is to prevent any type
of prejudical argument at any point during the trial
or interjection by the prosecutors concerning crime
or it's -- I very clearly get the gist of this
motion, and I'm sure the State does also. The Court
will grant this motion in limine. This will be
granted, and I want to caution the State not to try
to interject any improper prejudical such arguments
or matters in this trial. So that motion will he
granted.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Yoﬁr Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right. The next motion is
motion to allow the defendant to wear civilian
clothes while the State seeks his execution. It
won't be necessary Eo proceed with a further hearing
on this motion. This will be allowed. This is
customary and has always been allowed in this
district. The oniy caveat to that would be that the
family or whoever needs to make sure those clothes
are at the jail availablé in plenty of time for the
defendant to change into those clothes prior to
trial. So that will be granted with whatever
clothing is made available to the defendant.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Heonor, I would object
to the styling of the moticn.

BY THE COURT: Okay .
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BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I don't care what he wears
while he's being executed.

BY THE COURT: I understand. I understand that.
It will be granted to allow him to wear civilian
clothes.

‘BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The next motion is defendant's
motion to compel disclosure of aggravating
circumstances and information relating mitigating
circumstances. I think the motion is very clear as
written. What says the State to thig?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: The State intends to
comply, ¥our Honor.

BY THE COURT: This does appear to be a proper
statement of the law, and this will be granted. This
is in nature of discovery, and the Court will reguire
the State to disclose any aggravating circumstances
and information relating mitiga;ing circumstances to
the defense. So this will be oxdered. The motion to
compel disclosure. 2All right. The next motion is
motion for funds for investigative‘aésistance. We
better procéed with a hearing on this motion.

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. One moment,
please, four Heonor.

BY THE COURT: Certainly.

BY MR. SERMOS: Let me get that out. I have
that, Your Honor. May I state to the Cburt the
reasons --

BRY THE COURT: Yesg, sir.

[T T B e
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{Mr.

BY MR. SERMOS: -~ Youx Honor? Your Honor,
first off, sometimes it's necessary to file this
motion and sometimes it's not. In this case, Your
Honor -- and, there again, I would ask the Court to
allow Mr. Rosenblatt to intexrject anything at any
time he would like to about this. One of the main
considerations here is we feel we need an
investigator. I mentioned a person named Don Evans.
In any case, but we feel we do, Your Honor, because
number one, there's allegations in the discovery or
there's actual statement in the discovery that a
prisoner named Michael Ferry, I believe is his name.
F-e-r-r-i-e, I believe.

BY MR. CLARK: Yes.

BY MR. SERMOS: Made a statement, and, in fact,
he was on video -- pardon me.

Sermos consults with Mr. Clark.)

BY MR. SERMOS: F-e-r-r-y. Made a statement on
video about some -- a comment ox statement, statement
or statements that the defendant, Mr. Havard, made
while in the jail, and one of the critical issues
that we're asking the Court to allow us to have an
investigator for is to speak with some of the other
prisoners that are either one, in the jail now or
some of them got out of the jail, to get their
testimony, if you will, or to interview them
regarding any statements that may or may not have
been made by Mr. Havard. And also there may be

another witness or two. For example, the deceased
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infant's mother, Rebecca, fér the investigator to
talk to because she is certainly a witness for the
State, hut there may.be also things that she would be
a witness for the defense, Your Honor, and we would
need to find that out, and I would state to the Court
that certainly if the Court grants this motion, we
would not be trying to use Mr. Evans, 1f he were the
investigator in this, excessively. He would have
specifically targeted goals and people for him to
talk to, and we feel that it's very critical to our
information, especially if the State intends to allow
any statement by either Mr. Ferry or someone else
that was up in the jail at that time when Mr. Havard
ig alleged to have made a statement regarding the
deceased infant. &all right.

BY THE COURT: All right. What says the State?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, the State would
just remind the Court of the guidelines set forth in
Butler at 608, 314 and Harrison, 635, 894 that an
investigator is proper when a specific, valid, and
compelling need is shown. It sounds as though the
defense basically wants to dig up dirt on our
witnessgses and put them on trial. We can't compel
ghese people to cooperdte with this investigator. We
have no authority, and the Court has no authority to.
even make them talk, and we don't feel like that what
they've alleged warrants the hiring of a special
investigator. Counsel is certainly free to conduct

interviews of anyone they want to, and it doesn't

B i s
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{Mr.

sound like it's that large a number or people are not
that hard to find.

BY THE COURT: Does the State intend to present
some what I would refer to jailhouse snitch type
testimony in this case?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, as far as what
will actually come in, of course, that remains to be
seen, buf that evidence is certainly out there and
could well be used.

BY MR. SERMOS: May I respond one moment, Your
HSnor? |

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. SERMCS: Your Honor, to even more
directly, if the State intends to use the person, Mr.
Ferry, to testify as to what he heard, which would be
an admission based on the rules of evidence, then we
have other people up there that we believe would
testify that Mr. Havard, the defendant charged in
this case, never made the statement that Ferry said
he made.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honox, that gets back
to the old joke about bringing one person who heard
éomething. Well, 1I'll bring in a thousand that
didn't hear it. I mean, where do you stop with that
kind of evidence?

BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, tﬁis is --

Sérmos confers with Mr. Clark.)
BY MR. SERMOS: Right. Obviously, Your Honor,

it's limited to people that are up there in the cell

T )
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block.

BY THE COURT: This is going to be the Court's
ruling on this motion, and I want you to listen very
carefully. The basic status of the law is you have
no right to an investigator as a matter of right just
to éimply go and fish for what you can that's there
in a case as far as evidence. The cases mentioned do
generally refer to specific matters or specific
requests. Mentioning here $32.00 an hour and .32 a
mile. That's pretty doggone strong for an
investigator. What the Court is going to do, I am
going to allow you up to a total of up to $1,000.00
for investigative work in this case. I caution the
defense to use that money wisely. To secure any
services at a lower price as you can and limit it to
only what you feel like is absolutely necessary
because that'’s going to be it. 2And that's the total
for -- that's the total. 1 will reimburse or order
payment for up to a total of a thousand dollars for
investigative services. 1It's the Court's opinion and
discretion that that's more than adequate than what's
been presented to the Court. So that's what you got
to work with. Use it wisely; and apply where it's
needed, and this is not -- this is a capital murder
cése, but I find that there's no basis to just turn
an investigator loose at $32.00 an hour with
basiéally no limitations.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The next motion is a motion for

J—
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full recordation. The Court has reviewed this
motion. This will be granted. This is essentially
to make certain that everything that takes place in
the trial will be placed on the record including any
bench conferences or meeting with respective counsel
with the Court. I will caution counsel to make
certain that this is complied with. In other words,
if you have something to présent, let's make certain
that. we have the court reporter present when this is
being done because in the heat of a trial, I know
it's -- it often happens. Both counsel may be back
with the Court in chambers and something may be
addressed. If you want it on the record, let's make
gure we stop, and the Court will be more than happy
to makg sure the court reporter is secured at any
time to-get anything on the trial. 8o that will be
granted. The next wmotion is motion to sequestex
jurors during the trial of this case.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I think the rules provide --

BY THE COURT: I think that's pretty clear. So
that will be granted. It has been requested. This
is a capital murder case. As long as it remains a
capital murder case with a potential death penalty
involved, this will be granted. I will state this.
&he éourt -- I have no idea how long voir dire will
take place, but the Court is not going to order
sequestration during voir dire. Generally and
typically, this is done once a jury is selected at

the voir dire process, but veoir dire involves a very
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large juror pcoeol, and there is no -- it's not
necessary under the law that from the very moment all
the potential jurors arrive at the courthouse, that
they be sequestered. So other than that, it will be
granted once a jury is selected in a case.

BY MR. SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. CLARK: We would like the Court to -- if
that issue comes up to please to the members of the
voir dire who are there to be cautioned not to
discuss the matter --

BY THE COURT: Certainly.

BY MR. CLARK: And to talk -~

BY THE COURT: Certainly. The Court will be
very cautious of that, but what I am saying is that
like all the jurors'appear, once we get to a lunch
break, I'm not going to try to keep all this which is

potentially a 100, 150 jurors together at lunch time,

23

but I'll caution them very clearly, but once the jury’

is actually selected, they will be sequestered at
that point. 2And if we do that at the end of the
first day, they will not be allowed to go back home
by themselves, even if we don't start in on the
actual trial until the next day. So that is well
taken, Mr. Clark, and I will caution the potential
jurcrs very clearlf that they're not to discuss the
matters with anyone. BAll right. The next motion is
a motion to enjoin the prosecution for utilizing his
pre-emptory challenges to exclude persons

conscientiously opposed to the death penalty not
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excusable for cause under Witherspoon.. All right.
What is the defense basis for this motion?

BY MR. SERMOS: Well, Your Honor; we would
just -- teo put it bluntly, we would just ask that --
I realize that the prosecutor has pre-emptory
challenges, and we would ask that their challenges
only if they are appropriate challenges, that they
just don't -- the Court deesn't allow them to excuse
a potential juroxr merely beéause the juror says,
"Well, I really don't like the death penalty, but I
won't refuse to sentence somebody to death® or as in
Witherspoon which the case was the jury wouldn't
automatically sentence someone to death. 8o we would
just ask the Court to make room or have the State
make room on the jury for someone that could, in
other words, be opposed teo the death penalty but that
doesn't necessarily commit to himself or the S5tate or
the defense that he would absolutely not give the
death penalty.

BY THE COURT: Now, there axre a lot of US
Supreme Court rulings in‘regard to juror service that
have recognized that even though they are pre—emptory
challenges that they may not be used on the basis of
the person's race or religion or age. Certain
recognized categories where, essentially, the juror
has a constitutional right to serve. BAre you telling
this Court that a person who says that they have
objections to the death penalty that they have a

constitutional right to be placed on the jury panel

24
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and should be free from pre-emptory challenges of the
S&ate?

BY MR. SERMOS: I don'‘t think there's any case
law on that exact point, Your Heonor, and I think the
district attorney would like to have people like that
excused from the jury. We would simply in the motion
ask the Court to -- essentially if theré is an

objection to that by the defense to the State's

- pre-emptory exercise, we would just ask the Court to

consider that at the time and to find some other
reason perxhaps.

BY THE COURT: What says the State?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, the State would
agree with the Court that there's no authority for
such a proposition and would alsc note in paragraphs
two and three of the motion that the counsel for the
defense has accused the prosecutor in this county of
routinely utilizing our pre-emptory challenges to
systematically exclude the jury panel in capital
cases those people who expressed conscientious
scruples. Your Honor, I have been with this office
five vears, and wé haven't had a capital case that I
recall. 8o I don't think the?e’s any pattern of
systematic exclusion that forms the basis of this
motion, and I think that the jury selection process
and our compliance with Batson would adequately
address any concerns that they have, I don't think
they can show any pattern that we've engaged in, and

it's certainly not our intention to be unfair to any

25
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defendant.

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that jury
seléction will be as provided by law. There is a
very clear body of law regarding in capital murder
case what jurors are subject to challenge for cause,
which jurors are not, but to the extent that this
motion seeks to enjoin the prosecution from utilizing
pre-emptory challenges in the manner stated, the
Court is going to deny that motion. All right. The
next motion is a motion of discovery of information
necessary to receive a fair trial. Does the defense
have anything that it desires to present?

BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honoxr, if I may state, I
realize that the letter reéuested under Rule 9.04,
and I basically would honestly state to the Court
that we filed this motion to make sure that we had
everything covered that we may possibly need and knew
that the able counsel for the State would read all of
this, and if there's anything in here that remind the
State prosecutor of something else that we needed to
provide, that's the reason I filed this motion, and
we wanted to make sure we covered all the basis, not
just what it says exactly in Rule 9.04. ‘

BY THE COURT: Does the State have anything in
regarﬁ to this motion?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, I would agree
that we have been in fairly close communication with
counsel for this defendant. They've done a good job

of coming to us and reviewing the evidence that we

26
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have that we not able just to hand over to them. The
only thing we're waiting on now, I think I was -- I'm
printing up some coloxr photographs so that they can
have actual color copies of the photographs involved
in this case. I can't think of anything that we're
gtill holding up on. I would ask the Court to be
willing to conduct any further hearings if it becomes
necessary. I would note for the Court that I don't
beliaf we've received anything at this point and that
discovery obligation is reciprocal.

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that the
Court will order that discovery be provided pursuant
to Rule 9.04, and this will include the provisions of
the rule for reciprocal discovery also. I would
caution the State that this is a capital murder case,
and that if there's any late disclosure of evidence, -
it will be very carefully reviewed by the Court
because the Court will more strictly scrutinize any
late disclosure of evidence in this particular case
than it noxrmally does because this is a capital
murder case. 8o discovery will be crdered pursuant
to Rule 9.04. The next motion is to preclude the
sheriff's department from bringing the defendant into
court in shackles. It won't be necessary for the
Court to hear anything further. This is routinely
complied with, and I will just caution the State to
make sure this is complied with again-in this case,
but that is the Court's standing order that any

shackles be removed before the defendant is brought

27




LAGENQOND FaRu A & PENGAL « 1. B00-531- 568 » rewrw.o pngad.com

£ N
<.

1¢

11

12

13

14

15

16 -

17
18
i9
20
21
22
23
24

25

26

27

28

29

Motions 9-5-02 ' 28
inte the courtroom, and that the jury not be exposed
to see this in any manner at all. This will be
ordered, but it's noted that this is the normal
customary policy of the Adams County Sheriff's
Department and also the Court in all cases. All
right. The next wmotion is motion for permission to
file additional motions. You can file additional
motions, but file all the motions that you're aware
of at this time. Again, don't come with the Court
with a barrage of motions the morning of trial that
there's no reason why these couldn't have been filed
before that.

BY MR. CLARK: Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. CLARK: 1In conjunction with that, I had a
couple of things in mind --

BY THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. CLARK: Such as a motion for an
independent evaluation of the autopsy report that was
done by the State's expert, Dr. Hayne. Neither
co-counsel nor myself are meaically inclined, and we
don't have a complete understanding of everything
that's contained in the autopsy report. So we're
going to need some guidance from someone probably at
some point in time as to exactly what all that means
and what it says and to give us a lay person's
interpretation of that so that we can present that
part of it to the jury from our perspective, and also

maybe a motion to obtain the medical records of the
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baby prior to this date, from birth up until the date
the baby's death, in case there was any other
problems that the baby may have had that possibly
contributed to this particular situation. So that's
just a couple of things that we have in wmingd, and
those would be filed within a very short peried of
time.

BY THE COURT: The Court will address those when
they're filed, and the Court will be certainly
willing to issue any orders that maybe necessary to
obtain any prior medical records of the alleged
victim. Clearly, that's something that should be
obtained and will be necessary to be cbtained. So
the Court will be williing to assist in --

BY MR. CLARK: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: -~-- any ordexs that may be
necessary in order to do that. Would those be from a
local health care provider?

BY MR. CLARK: If the Courf would congidex an
expert, we don't really --

BY THE COURT: Well, I mean as far as these
medical records?

BY MR. CLARK: ©Oh, yes. The baby was tended to
here locally for the six months that she was on this
earth as far as I am aware of unless the district
attorney's office is --

BY THE COURT: 1I'll address any other motions as
they're filed. The next motion is a mbtion to

suppress gruesome photographs and evidence offered at
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the culpability phase. Mr. Sermos.

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. I realize the
motion in and of itself is relatively long, and it
covers a lot of space, and I realize the rules of
evidence are going to apply during the trial.
However, sgpecifically in this case, the State has
shown us and willingly shared, of course, some
photographs that Dr. Hayne would probably be shown
and testify to of the child with the head with the
skull opened and the brain exposed and pools of blcood
shown against the surface. 1In other words, Your
Honor, one of the sequelae or evidences of shaken
baby syndrome and those things that follow is blood
egsentially between the brain and the skull, and so
we would ask that the Court suppress the showing of
the photographs with the open skull of the child to
the jury. Dx. Hayne can testimony to that
appropriately with words rather than have to pass
around a photograph of the child with thé top of the
craniuvm removed. So that's the specific thing that
we want suppressed here.

BY THE COURT: Mr. Rosenblatt.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Yéur Honor, we have shared
photographs with the defense counsel. We haven't
specifically identified those pictures that we intent
to use. We would ask the Court to entertain at a

further hearing rulings particular photographs,

~although with regard to the autopsy photographs, we

certainly understand thabt normally autopsy
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photographs aren't admissible because they have
limited probative value and just inflame the jury
which is the standard the Court applies. However, in
the shaken baby case as Mr. Sermos himself noted, it
would be critical to show the blood accumulating in
the brain area because one of conditions of the
shaken baby syndrome is the tearing of the blood
vessels between the skull and the brain, and Dr.
Hayne would do an inadeguate job testifying without
being able to use a visual aid about this particular
baby and how the pattern of injury to this brain fits
with that classic syndrome. So we would urge the
Court In this case that the autopsy photograph bhe
admitted. We don’t feel it's unduly gruesome, and '
it would be very clinical in its presentation.

BY THE COURT: All right. Let the record show
that the law is pretty clear here. There is some
discretion on the Court. To the extent that thig
motion is to suppress the photographs at this time,
the Court is going to deny that motion, but the Court
will direct that before any photographs are used that
they be presented to the Court so that the Court can
make a determination. Thexre are limitations to the
use of photographs dealing with relevance, with
overly gruesome or inflammatory type of photographs.
So the Court will make a ruling at a later time as to
what photographs the State be allowed to use, but to
the extent that this is a motion to suppress, that

will be denied, but it will subject to further ruling

31
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by the Court prior to any use of such photographs at
the trial. I believe that's all the motions that I
show in the file as having been filed at this time.
So that will conclude this hearing, and this case
remainsg set for trial as scheduled on October the
28th at nine o'clock a.m.

BY MR. SERMOS: One moment, please, Your Honor.
May I confer with the defendant --

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. SERMOS: -- right here so I can double
check --

BY THE COURT: Certainly.

BY MR. SERMOS: -- one thing before you leave
the bench.

Sermos, Mr. Clark and the defendant confer.)

BY MR. CLARK: May we‘ask you, do you have any
dates open to hear additional motions that the Court
is ailow us to --

BY THE COURT: Sure. One is September the 18th,
I know. That will be a motion day that I will have
here in Natchez, and I will be in Amite County the
first two weeks of October. So if you have anything
I could probably hear it there. I do know I have '
that date that you're certainly welcome to use.

ﬁY MR. CLARK: Thank you.

BY MR. SERMOS: I have nothing further, Your
Honor.

BY THE COURT: This hearing will be in recess.
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COURT REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

I, Melanie G. Murray, Official Court Reporter in and for
the Sixth Circuit Court District of Mississippi, do hereby
certify that the within and foregoing thirty (30} pages
contain a full, true, and correct transcription of my
notes and tapes, to the best of my skill and ability, of
the proceedings had and done in the aforestyled and
humbered cause heard in the Circuit Court of Adams County,
[Mississippi, Courthouse on September 5, 2002.

I do further certify that my certificate annexed
here;o applies only to the original and certified
transgcript. The undersigned assumes no responeibility for
the accuracy of any reproduced copies not made under my
control or direction.

WITNESS my signature, this the 7th day of April,

2003.

Melanie G. Murray
9 Primrose Lane
Natchez, MS 39120

33

R e e L



LASER BEND FORMA (B PENGAD + 1:100-631:69 19 » www pengad com

io

11

12

13

14

15

1s

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

pMotions 9-5-02

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ADAMS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

VERSUS "CAUSE NO. 02-KR-141

JEFFREY HAVARD, DEFENDANT
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TRANSCRIPT OF THE PRCCEEDINGS HAD AND DONE IN MOTIONS IN
THE ABOVE STYLED AND NUMBERED CAUSE BEFORE THE HONORARLE
FORREST A. JOHNSON, JUNIOR, JUDGE OF THE COQURT AFORESAID,
SOLE PRESIDING, ON THE 25TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2002, IN THE
CHANCERY COURTROCM OF TEE ADAMS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPIL

COURTHOUSE.
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APPEARANCES :
Present and Rebresenting the State:

HONORABLE TOM ROSENBLATT
Assistant Distrxict Attorney
Sixth Circuit Judicial District
Natchez, MS 39120

Present and Representing the Defendant:

HONCRABLE GUS SERMOS
Attorney at Law

FP. O. Box 621
Summit, MS 39666

HONORABLE ROBERT CLARK
Attorney at Law

P. 0. Box B86

Vidalia, LA 71373
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BY THE COURT: The Couxt is going to call Case
Number 02-KR-141 in the mattex of the State of
Mississippi versus Jeffrey XKeith Havard. Let the
record show that the defendant is present with both
counsel who have previously been appointéd by the
Court to represent the defendant. The Court
previously had a hearing on a number of motions.

This cause comes before the Court today on two
additional motions that have been filed with the
Court, one of which is a motion for independent
evaluation of the autopsy reporﬁ, and also there is a
motion for production of medical records. So these
are the tweo motions that the Court has that have been
gset for hearing teday. All right. The Court is
going to allow the defense to proceed with any of
these motions. Y'all want to take these one at the
time or --

BY MR. CLARK: Yes, sir. I mean -~

BY THE COURT: All xight. Go ahead with
anything additionai you have. Let's take the first
one -- the first one I have is motion for independent
evaluation of autopsy report or really you can
address both of them at the same time because --

BY MR. CLARK: Well, they sort of go together,
Your Honor --

BY THE COURT: Yesg,.

BY MR. CLARK: -- to try to us complete the
medical picture of this tragic incident. We are

asking the Court to appoint somedne who's qualified
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to advise not only me but also my co-counsel, Mr.
Sermos, concerning exactly what the autopsy report
says. As I am sure the Court is aware and there have
been -- there was a lengthy autopsy that was done,
and it was an initial report that was filed. There
was a supplemental report that has been filed, and I
believe yesterday I received a fax from the DA's
office, and there were some additional matters that
had been submitted to the cfime lab that needed
further analysis, and we would think that it would be
propexr for the Court to have someone appointed to
assist us in pretty much trying to explain to usg what
exactly the autcpsy says concerning the baby's death.
And in conjunction with that, we would also ask the
Court to given us copies of the baby's medical.
reco:ds; The baby was only six months old, and I
don't imagine had too many medical recoxrds at that
point, but whatever those were, we would like to have
that information. We've couched this in language to
either have the State produce these through its
subpoena power or through the Court's power,
whichever way the Court wants to do that. We have no
objection either way. All we would like to do is
have that information. Based upen information that I
and Mr. Sermos have read and looked over, there are
situations where shaken baby syndrome can be other
things, and vice versa, of course, and tc have those
medical records would give us an indication as to

whether or not there could be additional things or
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sitvations that may have caused the baby's death. So
based on these two arguments, we would ask the Court
to grant our two motions.

BY THE COURT: Does the State have any response
to that?

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Homor, with regard to
the medical records, I would just point out the
medical records aren't in the custody and control of
the State, and if the Court sees fit to order the
production of those records, we will respectfully
request that the Court order the records be furnished
to the Court for an in camera inspection prior to any
release of the records to both parties, both sides in
this case. There is a, I guess, a slight question of
privilege in that the baby's medical records, the
baby is not a party to the case. B8So technically, the
privilege rules may apply. We would certainly have
no objection to that. In fact, we would ask that we
would certainly appreciate the chance to view those
records also if the Court finds they are the
appropriate subject of this case and don't contain
any extraneous matters that aren't relative to the
case and may cause either harm or embarrassment to
any time unrelated teo this case. As I say, I can't
imagine right now what that might be, but just, for
example, some genetic testing or whatnot that may
have been done for some non-probative reason. And so
I would offer either to draft an order to submit to

the Court for the Court's signature, or if the Court

TN T I
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would wish to draft its own oxder for the production
of those records.

BY MR. CLARK: Might I add something in
conjunction with that --

BY THE COURT: Sure.

BY MR. CLARK: -- and not to dispute anything,
but I would think that Ms. Britt, the baby's mother,
could possibility sign the waiver that would as=zist
us in that regard, tooc.

BY THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. CLARK: I don't know that. That's just
gomething I thought of --

BY THE COURT: For the record, how old was the
alleged victim?

BY MR. CLARK: Six months old.

BY THE COURT: Six months old. And what was the
relationship, if any, between the defendant and the
alleged victim's mother? I méan -~ -

BY MR. CLARK: They were living together in a
trailexr that was owned by his grandparents.

BY THE COURT: Foxr this six-month period of time
when this baby was --

BY MR. CLARK: No, sir. No, sir. They had been
together there for approximately two to three weeks.

BY THE COURT: Sc he wouldn't have knowledge |
about who 2ll the baby had been to?

BY MR. CLARK: No, sir.

BY THE COURT: What doctors necessarily?

BY MR. CLARK: No, sir.

T
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BY THE COURT:  All right. All right. Let the
recoxrd show that the Court has very carefully
considered these two metions and the arguments that
are made -- excuse me.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Please forgive me. If 1
could just address the second motion just for this
point of clarification. |

BY THE CQURT: Yes. I'm sorry.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: I am not real clear on
exactly what the defense would be asking for.

They're just wanting someone to basically advise them
in the nature bf investigator, or are they asking for
somecne that's going to testify at trial as an expert
witness. I don't think -- just for example, the
State is not medically trained either and when we

want to know what the autopsy report says or seek an

explanation, we call Dr. Hayne and he discusses it

with-us. Dr. Hayne is not an agent for us, and Dr.
Hayne is certainly available to the defense also to
explain oxr digcuss the report. And I am just not
real clear on what role that this person that they
éeek to have appointed would fillf And then also
additionally with the medical records, that even if
the medical records are obtained, the State wouldn't
be conceding admissibility of those records at this
point, but merely for the purpose of trial
preparation. The admissibility of those records
would be a separate question. Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE CQURT: Let the record show that the

40
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Court has very carefully considered hoth these
motions. One is a motion for independent evaluation
of autopsy report. The motion specifically reads
that the Court is requested to appoint a qualified
medical expert to review and evaluate the autopsy
report prepared by Dr. Steven T. Hayne, pathologist,
and in support hereof would respectfully show to-wit:
Defense counsel could not have any medical training
and need assistance in interpreting the autopsy in
order to adequately prepare a defense for Jeffrey
Havard. The other motion for the prdduction'of
medical records of alleged victim, the deceased
child, Chloe Madison Britt, date of bixth, August
29th, 2001. All right. Again, let the recoxrd show
the Court has very carefully considered both of these
motions in addition to what counsel for each side has
argued fo the Court. First of all, concerning the
medical. records, the Court finds that the motion is
well taken concerning any medical records. Clearly
this is something that there's clearly a need for
these by defense counsel. So the Court is going to
first order that notwithstanding any privilege as set
out in the law, the child, one Chloe'Madison, date of
birth, 8-29, 2001, is the alleged victim in this
case. She's deceased. Very clearly any records,
medical records, should be subject to production in
this case, and, therefore, the Court is going to
order that any and all medical records of this minor

child who was approximately six months of age at the
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time of the alleged death will be ordered to be
produced by whoever has them to counsel of record for
the defendant. The Court will prepare an order to
that effect. This is not a situation where you have
a living victim where there needs to be a medical
release. This-is deceased alleged victim, and the
Court is going to order that these records be made
available. Now, in comnection with that, the Court
will order that any copies of any records obtained be
immediately provided to the district attorney's
office so that both sides will have these available.
The Court will further order that any expenses in
connection with these records or charges for them
wili be incurred by Adams County, and the Court will
be available to order immediate reimbursement to
counsel if any coste are incurred or to order payment
for these recoxrds if there's any charge for these.

It will further be oxdered that any records obtained,
they will still be subject to any and all objections.
That is not before the Court, but simply this is to
obtain the records. Now, the Court realizes that the
defense may be somewhat limited in ascertaining or

finding out what medical providers had treated this

child. There should not be a lot because of the age

of the child, but the Court is going to order this.
I am going to order that the State ascertain from the
victim's mother within seven days to provide to the
best of her ability to the prosecutors for the State

where the child was born at and what doctors, if any,
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saw this child prior to the events that are before
this Court, and that once that's done, Mr.
Rosenblatt, if y'all will advise counsel for the
defense so they will have a basis of who to go to.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: I assume there's going to be some
pediatrician or somebody that delivered the baby
locally, and that appears to the Court to be the
easiest way to get it done. If you'li héve the
victim assistant coordinator or somebody find out
from her who delivered the baby and what doctor saw
the baby before these events, and so you can let them
know. And then the Court is going to provide a court
order so at that point they can take this court order
and go get these records from whoever has them. And,
again, I want the records, copies of them, made
available to the State whe?e they!1ll know what the.
records are, and, again, this will be subject to any
objections that may arise concerning these, but that
appears to be the procedure for obtaining these
records. So that's going to be the Court's order in
regard to the records. On the other motion
concerning --

BY MR. CLARK: Judge, we have no objection to
those --

BY THE COURT: Do what?

BY MR. CLARK: -- to those records being
provided simultanecusly to both sides by whoever the

medical provider will be. I mean --
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BY THE COURT: Well, they can be, but the whole
point is I am not going to order the State to do
this.

BY MR. CLARK: Right.

BY THE COURT: You're the one requesting the
records. 8o I'm going to give you the means to do
ic.

BY MR. CLARK: All right.

BY THE COURT: The order to order those medical
providers under my signature, the Court's signature,
to order them to be released, and I am ordefing the
State to f£ind out who those providers may be. Mr.
Rosenblatt, if you chpose to go and try to move this
along, y'all are certainly welcome to do that. I
will put in the order where either side can obtain
copies of those ~-

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: But let's just get this done
because we have an approaching trial date of Octocber
the 26th, I believe,

BY MR. SERMOS: 28th.

BY MR. CLARK: 28th.

BY THE COURT: 28th of when thig matter is set
for trial. Now, concerning the motion for an
independent evaluatibn of autopsy report. The Court
finds no basis under the law or reason to so order
this. Under discovery, whatever report of Dr.
Stephen Hayne that he did or supplemental reports

should already be provided to counsel, and also he's
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available if they see the need to go talk to him
personally as the State would have, but the Court
finds no basis or need on what's before the Court to
seek out an independent medical- expert, for the Court
to do that and to appoint somebody to do that. So
the Court is going to deny that motion at this time.
That will be the Court's ruling in this mattex, and
let's just get these records done so that these will
be available for counsel for both sides to look at
and see exactly what's there well in advance of
trial,

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, if I may --

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. ROSENELATT: -- briefly report toc the
Court on some discovery issues that we have. I had
been asked to furnish photographs to the defense
counsel. Rather than just leave them at a local
pharmacy because these were crime scene photographs,
I took them to Southern Camera in Baton Rouge, and I
intend to pick those up today or tomorrow, and I will
give those to defense counsel as soon as I do that.

BY THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Also, Your Honor, as is
typical in these sorts of investigations, a large
number of items were gathered up at the time of
incident and submitted to the crime lab.
Clarification about what tests were -- in other
words, these items were submitted with the standard

request to please test. As the case gets closer to

45
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trial, it becomes apparent that not all the items
were indeed tested. Some of the sheets, some of the
baby's clothing, and some other items were suspected
to have human blood on them. It wasg not until just a
few days ago that we got an official report from the
crime lab which has been furnished to the defense
counsel stating that it was, indeed, human blood on
some of these items. Immediately upon receiving that
report, we requested that the identity of that blood
be determined right away so that we can furnish that
to counsel for the defense. So we've tried to stay
in constant communication with them about what tests
are being done or what tests are being requested. I
apologize to the Court for this being done at a
relatively late date. We're trying to move along as
rapidly as possible, and we anticipate to have final
results within the next few days on our identity, and
if there are any difficulties with getting that, we
will come before you after notifying defense counsel.

BY THE COURT: All right. Just make certain
that defense counsel is forthwith notified about any
results and provided copies of anything that you
have. Aiso let me say this as far as these medical
records. These are wmedical records and they should
not be disseminated to anyone else. In other woxds,
they will stay within this particular legal matter
that is before the Court, subject to any objections.
I.don't have any idea what's there or what's not

there, what may sought to be used or not, but it will




LASERGOND FORMA (8 PENGAD v 5-B00-63)-6943 » www.pangas.com

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21,

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Potions 5-25-02

be a further provision that they not 'be disseminated
to any outside partieg in this matter.

BY MR. CLARK: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: So that will conclude the
hearing; and the Court will provide an order on this
that I'1l) get right away so that these medical
records can be obtained, and, again, if the State
would rather have their investigator take this oxderxr
and go get the records themselves and give them
copies, that will be perfectly permissible because
this just needs to be done. This just needs to be
done. And it should not be a lot of records. It
should not be a lot. We're not talking about a long
time period or a person of an age where there might
be a lot of medical providers. There should not be
that much record, but whatever is there, clearly I
want it produced and I want the defense to be able to
see that.

| BY MR. CLARK: Thank you, Your Honor,
BY MR. ROSENBLATT: fhank yvou, Your Honor.
BY THE CCOURT: All right. That will conclude

this hearing.,

47
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Sixth Circuit Court District
Natchez, Misgissippi

HONORABLE THOMAS ROSENBLATT
HONORABLE DAVID W. HALL

Agpistants to the Dlstrict Attorney
Sixth Circuit Court Distriat
Natchez, Migsissippi

Present Repregenting the Defendant:

HONORABLE ROBERT CLARK
Attorney at Law
vidalia, Louisiana

HCONORABLE GUS SERMOS
Attorney at Law
Summit, Mizsimsippi
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JUDITH W. BROWN
CFFICIAL COURT REPORTER
SIXTH CIRCUIT COURT DISTRICT

48 MELANIE ROAD -
NATCHEZ, MISSISSIPPI 39120
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THE COURT: The Court is going to call Case
Number 02-KR-141 in the matter of the State of
Mississippi versus Jeffery Keith Havard.

Let the record show that the defendant is
present with both counsel and also the District
Attorney and his assistant. This matter was
previcusly set for trial scheduled to begin on Monday
of this week, being Octcber 28, 2002. The Court made
known to the attorneys invelved in the case that the
case would be continued and reset to another date and
time, being December 16, 2002, at 9:00 o’clock a.m.
on a Monday.

I know there’é one motion that’s been pending, a
Motion to Suppress Admission into Evidence of Alleged
Pornographic Materials. The Court also wanted to
conduct this as somewhat of a status conference of
the case at this time.

THE COURE: First of.all, this motion that has been
pending for some time that the Court received, I believe it was
filed Ogtober 21st; what says the State Eo this motion? Does
the State intend to use sexually oriented magazines that were
allegedly found at the defendant’s residence?

MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, there were some phptographs
taken of the inside of the mobile home where this incident
occurred. I think what the defendant is referring to is there
were scme provecative magazines that were found in the house
that were actually laid out and then photographed. It wouldn’t
be our inﬁention to use anything of that nature that wouldn’t

fairly and accurately depict the scene as it occurred. We
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don’t intend to try this man on the basis of that sort of
material. -

THE COURT: All right, is any of the sexually oriented
material that is referred to in the motion, is it commected to
the alleged crime in any way or the type of crime that’'s
alleged in this case?

MR. ROSENBLATT: It’s comnected to it; in other words, it
would be felevant to show some sort of state of mind; but I
don’t believe it would qualify under a 4.04(b) exception. I
think it’s clearly a ~- I mean it’'s relevant to the point of
showing that this a wan that looks at this sort of stuff might
do that sort of thing, but it wouldn’t be --

- THE COURT: Well, let me rephrase that. Is any of this
anything that could be characterized as sexually explicit of
children?

MR. ROSENBLATT: No, sir.

THE CQURT: All right, that being the situation, the Court
at this time will f£ind that the Motion to Suppress this
particular item of evidence is well taken, and the Court will
grant that.

MR. CLARK: Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Yes, sir.

MR. CLARK: To the Best of my recollection, they were
Playboy magazines. I mean it wasn’t anything of any kind of
child pornography.

MR. SERMOS: He’s granted it anyway.

MR. CLARK: I just wanted to add that.

THE COURT: Well, that’s what the Court was interested in.

So the Court does not see any relevancy to that, and the Court

.
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will grant -- well, it’s really not -- it shouldn’t be a Motion
to Suppress; it will be more granted as a Motion in limine is
what it will be, The Court will grant -- order in limine that
this not be used by the State, and if something very unusual
arises, then the Court can be approached by that by way of
motion during the trial. So that will be sustained by way of
order in limine. .

All right. ©Now, first of all, .one of the main things the
Court wanted to inguire about is the State ready to try this
case? Has the State announced ready foxr trial?

MR. HARPER: Your Honoxr, I will just state for the record
there are some tests that have been run or are being run at the
Crime Laboratory in Jackson, and it’s my understanding in
conversations with the analysts at the Crime Lab the tests have
been completed; the only thing that would be lacking would be a
review by an outside party, which apparently is part of their
protocol. They indicated to me that that review would be done
on Friday Morning, and barring any unforeseen problems, would
anticipate having reports on those tests by Friday afternoon by
FPAX and by Monday morning in the mail, so -~

TEE_COURT: All right, these are tests on what?

MR. HARPER: This would be DNA testing on items that were
found at the house or the trailexr where the acts or the alleged
acts tcook place.

THE coﬁRT: These would be results that the State would be
intending to use in thig case?

MR. HARPER: Yes, sir.

THEE COBRT: All right, so in other words, this case wasn't

ready to be tried on Monday?

Y B
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MR. HARPER: Not to the extent that we would have had
those items, Your Honor. Just for the record and for the
Court’s information, we had been advised and have been in
constant contact with the Crime Lab abqut these particular
things; they have continued to assure us that they would be
completed within a short period of time; but every time there
would be a delay from that and a delay from that. So we could
have proceeded without them, Your Honor, but to use them
cbviously we wouldn’t have had them to proceed; that’s coxrrect,
sir.

fHE COURT: How long have you been D.A., Mr. Harper?

MR. HARPER: Since 1996, sir.

THE COURT: I hope yoﬁ don’t believe what the Crime Lab
tells you about when stuff is going to be ready.

MR. HARPER: Well, we -- that’s one reason we kept calling
them back, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: All right.

MR, HARPER: And like I said, we could have proceeded

without them. I thought just as an abundance of just making
sure that everything -- all bases were touched, we wanted to
make sure that these tests were in fact.run.

MR. HA#PER: Other than these results, which should be
back in a test very shortly as I understand, is there anything

else remaining as far as the State is concerned why this case

can’t proceed to trial?

M

MR. HARPER: No, Your Honoxr. We would be ready to

proceed.

TEE COURT: All right, what about the defense?

MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, may I address the Court?

[ P T
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IHE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. SERMOS: First, concerning a unewspaper article that
was in The Natchez Democrat yesterday wmorning concerning the
trial of a man charged with killing the baby postponed. Number
one, we would submit that obviously this is an untimely
circumstance for this to come out. And we also think -- we
certainly aren’t going to take Mr. Harper to task because we
don’t know what the sheriff’s office told -- but we feel that
this article is in violation of the trial publicity rule
modeled from the Rules of Professional Conduct as far as Rule
3.6 ~- and I brought the book with me. Let me get it out. One
moment, Your Honor; I have it right here marked.

3.6, Your Honor, that rule talks about when a lawyer
should not make extrajudicial statements that a reasonable
person would expect to be disseminated by means if a lawyer
knows or reasonably should know it will have a substantial
likelihood of materially prejudicing in an adjudicative
proceeding.

And then it goes on to talk about what can and cannot be
stated. Bagically it says on the next page of the Mississippi
Rules of Court 2002 that in a criminal case that what should be
basically printed is identity, residence, occupation, family
status of accused, if the accused has been apprehended or not,

the necessary information to aid in apprehension, the fact,

| time, and place of arrest, and identity of investigating and

arresting officers and agencies.

Looking at that, Your Homor -- I’1ll have a copy of it

| prepared for the Court later -- that and additionally we

understand that Mr. Havard has been indicted and is set to be

FSTTRI
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arraigned on an escape charge on November 19th. And something,
I believe, has already been in the paper about that. 2And the
reason I mention these things to the Court --

TEE COURT: Now wait, something is wrong about that,
because I haven’t set an arraignment date yet; I'd have to be
the one doing that.

MR. SERMOS: Okay, somebody just told me the 19th.

MR. CLARK: That's Judge Sanders; she‘s got that case,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well now that may be if it’s Judge Sanders’
case.

MR. CLARK: And to the best of my knowledge I‘ve been
notified that is the arraignment date.

THE_COURT: All right, what is it in this article that
appeared yesterday that violates thisg?

MR. SERMOS: Well, there'again, we can‘t -- I'm not asking
-- we can't go back and start the trial the 28th, but what I'm
getting to it talks aboﬁt statements, and it mentioned that the
defendant changed his story.

MR. ﬁOSENBLATT: Your Honor, the only comment attributable
to the District Attorney’s office was that this is a death
penalty case;

MR. HARPER: Aand that it had been delayed from yesterday,
which is why they contacted me to f£ind out if it was going
forward; and I indicated to them that it had been postponed

from the 28th. In the course of that, there was some

discussion about the case and whether or not it was a death

penalty case, which I indicated in the affirmative that it was.

Other than that, anything else that’s in that article, I
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did not give them or to my knowledge did anybody. I assume
that came from previous information they had obtained prior to
recent dates.

THE COURT: And the newspaper called yvou?

MR, HARPER: Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

MR. SERMOS: Your Honor --

‘MR. HARPER: To find out if that case was going forward on
the 28th as it had been publicly set to do.

MR. SERMOS: The main thing I believe that we didﬁ't
obviously -- there again, I didn’t know where the sources

were -- but it said Havard -- it’s a misprint or something --

"that Rebecca, the mother performed CPR on the child, and he

began shaking the child, and there.was a statement he later
changed.

Your Honor, in other words, the articles that were out,
let’s say like February or March are one thing and any
statements by the sheriff or whatever that wés in there, but
this coupled with apparent publicity or at least something in

the paper about an escape charge is causing -- in fact Mr.

| cilark can address the Court -- we’re having to consider whether

or not we do need to go ahead and do a change of venue motion
to presenﬁ_to the Court. .In fact I just got this yesterday,
and I was in court all day somewhere elsé. But Mr. Clark and
I, we’re just, as far as the status of the case, we’re having
to make a decision, and we’re going to meet with Mr. Havard
later on after this court if we can do that.

THE COURT: Well, I will strongly order that the District
Attorney’s office and any law enforcement agencies involved

strongly adhere to the rule of Court. There should be really

—
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nothing disseminated about this case; I don’t know where this
information came from that you recited in the article; I’m not
sure where that came from, but I will order that.

MR. HARPER: Your Honor, just for purposes of the record
I'd like to state into the record that I have never given any
information about the factual basis for these charges or
anything about the case at all to any news media or ahyone else
outside of law enforcement. Where they got that, I don’t know.
But I have not, either in this recent conversation or in any
previous conversation made any statements to them involving
that information. So I just want to make that abundantly clear
in the record.

THE COURT: All right, and the Court ~-- I notice the
article‘had some incorrect information about the date; I don’t
know where they got that from; that was not announced publicly
to anybody. I only announéed that to the attorneys about the
date that I was planning on doing it, December 16th; and I
think thef had November lé6th.

MR, CLARK: That’s correct.

THE COURT: This case is continued until December the
i16th, Monday, at 9:00 o’clock a.m. Now, I understapd what
you‘re saying about the change of venue, but before -- let the
record show before this has been addressed on the record. The
defendant himself had stated to the Court that he was in
agreement with the decision not to ask for a change of venue.

I will certainly allow you to revisit that, but this is
something that a decision is going to have to be made. So I
will give you seven days from today to make an election., If

you desire to file a motion for change of venue, certainly I --

o
3
d
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it probably won’t be necessary for the Court to have a hearing
on that, but I need to know so that I can make arrangements of
where we'fe going to be on Monday, December the 16th.

MR, SERMOS: Your Honor, we understand that; and if I may
state in summary: the reason that I found this most troubling
yestérday when it was sent to my office is Mr. Clark and myself
and the defendant, we were ready for trial on the 28th, I mean,
and then -- so here’s something coming out, so to speak,
statements coming out when we’re ready; we weren‘t in the
courtroom, but out there on the street. And we just feel
like -- I mean, I know you couldn’t control it or the District
Attorney, but I mean, that certainly is an inappropriate and an
inconvenient and a very unseftling time to have this come about
when we were ready to be here in the Court.

THE COURT: I can understand that. I’m going to do this:
if there’s going to be a change of venue motion filed, I want
it filed within seven days. 2and another thing is if it is
filed I want the defendant to sign off on there whether.he
agrees with that and consents with that or what hig posgition is
in regard to that too. If you file ik, it will be subject to
being fuled on by the Court without further hearing in this
matter. But I do want something done because there are a lot
of logistics and plans that have to be made.

The case will be continued until Monday, December the
16th, starting at 9:00 o’clock a.m.

Are there any other motions or matters that we need to
take up today?

MR. SERMOS: None that I see.

THE COURT: The Court will be available for any other
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motions. Just let me know when you need those set up.

MR. HARPER: Your Honor, I would ﬁust staﬁe that if --
when we get these reports on Friday, which we anticipate we’ll
get, I‘11 certainly make those available posthaste to the
defense.

THE COURT: As soon as possible.

MrR. HARPER: Yes, sir.

MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. ROSENBLATT: At our last hearing the request for
medical records for the child was addressed, and we furnished
the defense all the information we had about who all had
treated this child and where; and I just want to confirm while
we're here in court that those records have been obtained by
the defendant.” We haven’t either obtained them or haven’t
received anything from the defendant, and I just wanted‘to know
what the status of those records --

MR. CLARK: The status of “that, Your Honor, is that Mr.
Rosenblatt and I have obviously been missing each other back
and forth, because he’s called wme on that issue a couple of
times and given a Dr. Dar in Vidalia, and I’‘ve called him back;
but we just haven’'t been able to get together. I don’t think
it -~ I‘'m hoping it’s not going to be a problem for us to get
them, but I think if we both go together to try to obtain them
together.

MR. ROSENBLATT: We're at your disposal.

THE COURT: All right, that will be noted for the record.

MR. ROSENBLATT: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Court will be in recess.
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{There being nothing further, the hearing was céncludedt)

COURT REPORTER’S CERTIFICATE
I, Judith W. Brown, Official Court Reporter for the

Sixth Circuit Court District of Mississippi, do hereby cerpify
that to the best of my skill and ability I have reported the
proceedings had and done in a hearing om motions in Cause
Number 02-KR-0141, styled STATE OF MISSISSIPPI VERSUS JEFFREY
K. HAVARD, on the docket of the Circuit Court of the Sixth
Circuit Court District of Mississippi, and that the above and
foregoing eleven (11) pages, numbered 31 through 42, contain a
full, true, and correct transcript of my stenographic notes-and
tapes taken in said proceediﬁgs.

This is to further certify that I have this date filed the

original and one copy of the transcript with the Clerk of the

-Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi, and have notified

the attorneys of record, the Circuit Clerk, and the Supreme
Court Clerk of my actions herein.

I do further certify that wmy certificate anrexed hereto

1 applies only to the original and certified transcripts. The

undersigned assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any
reproduéed copies not made under my control or directicn.

This the day of April, 2003.

edicd 1) Braco

Judfth W. Brown, CSR 1015
Cfficial Court Reporter
Sixth Circuit Court District
48 Melanie Road

Natchez, MS 39120

COURT REPORTER’S BILL:
17 pages @ $2.00 ea: $34.00
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT COF ADAMS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
VERSUS CAUSE NO. 02-KRrR-141

JEFFREY KEITH HAVARD DEFENDANT
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TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS HAD AND DONE IN A TRIAI IN
THE ABOVE éTYLED AND NUMBERED CAUSE BEFORE THE

HONORABL,E FPORREST A. JOHNSON, JUNIOR, JUDGE OF THE COURT
AFORESAID, AND A JURY OF TWELVE MEN ANb WOMEN, ON THE
16TH, 17TH, 18TH, AND 1STH DAYS OF DECEMBER, 2002, IN THE
CIRCUIT COURTROOM OF THE ADAMS COUNTY, MISSISSIPP]
COURTHOUSE.
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[Present and Representing the State:
HONORABLE RONNIE HARPER '

_Ipistriet Attorney

Sixth Judicial Circuit District
Natchez, MS 39120

HONORABLE TOM ROSENBLATT
Assigtant District Attorney
Sixth Circuit Judicial District
Natchez, MS 39120

Present and Representing the Defendant:

HONORABLE GUS SERMOS
Attorney at Law

P. 0. Box 621
Summit ., MS 39666

HONORABLE ROBERT CLARK
Attorney at Law
Vidalia, LA
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Jury Qualification 61
_BY THE COURT: Have the jurors been sworn to
answer guestions truthfully?
BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Yes, gir.

BY THE COURT: Let the record so reflect. First of
all, ladies and gentlemen, under the law, as I stated even
though you have been summoned to serve as jurors in the
Circuit Court of Adams County, there are still certain
gualifications that are set out by law that you must meet.
I'm going to go through these. First of all, you must be
twenty-one years of age. That is a requirement for jury
duty. We try to catch this, and normally there!s no
problem about that, but i1if there's anyome that's not
twenty-one years of age or older, you need to let the
Court know about it. Also you must be an actual, bonafide
resident citizen or freeholder of Adams County. That
means you can'‘t have moved off and actually lived in some
other county. 8o if you have become a resident of some
other county and no longer live in Adams County, I need to
know about that. Alsc you must be able to read and to
write. That's the qualification set out by law for jury
duty. Alsc you must not be a convicted felon. ﬁhat thé
law says is an infamous crime. Now, that's any crime that
carries a year or more in the state penitentiary. That
doesn't mean you actually went and served time in the -
state penitentiary, but if you have a felony conviction,
no mattexr how old it is, under the law that would prevent
you from being able to serve on jury duty. Also you must
not have been convicted of the unlawful sale of

intoxicating liquor within the last five years. That's a
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Jury Qualification 62
misdemeanor crime. That .used to be a very serious matter.
So if you have a conviction for that, sale of intoxicating
liquor within the last five.years, under the law that
would disqualify you also. The law also says you must not
be a common gambler or a habitual drunkard. Now, we, of
course, have legalized gambling now. I'm still required
by law to ask this question, but if you like to go down to
the boat every now and then, that's not what I am talking
about. I wish they would change the law where I wouldn't
have to ask that guestion anymore, but that's why that is
in the law because it used to be unlawful and illegal . At

this time, of these qualifications that I've gone through,

lis anybody that has any responses to these. If so, would

you please raise your hand and let me know. Would vyou
come forward, please, ma'am. Of these that I have just
qgone through. Ladies and gentlemen, at this time, I am
only inquiring about the qualifications that I just went
over. That's what I just went over. S-e-g --

BY JUROR SEGUN: U-n.

BY THE COURT: I see it. Jacqueline Segun.

BY JUROR SEGUN: I moved to Franklin County about a
month and a half ago. . .
BY'THE COURT: You did what, now?

BY JUROR SEGUﬁ: Moved to Franklin County.

BY THE COURT: You moved te Franklin County?

BY JURCR SEGUN: Uh-huh. But I have --

BY THE COURT: What you need to do is go register to
vote --

BY JUROR SEGUN: Okay.

NI ETEPPAE N
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BY THE COURT: Because that way the clerk will notify
this clerk. But you're telling me you don't live in Adams
County any more.

BY JUROR SEGUN: T don't live in Adams County.

BY THE COURT: You live in Franklin County.

BY JUROR SEGUN: Franklin County. Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Let xecord show that the juror
Jacqueline Segun, S-e-g-u-n, has advised the Court under
her oath that she's no longer a resident of Adams County.
She's a resident of Franklin County now. So she will be
excused. I appreciate you being up here. Make sure you
ge register to vote over there.

{(Juror Segun is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. CLARK: Do you have a number on that?

BY THE COURT: It was number two ninety-seven on the
list, and the clexk is preparing a shorter list of those
actually present, but that's juror number two
ninety-seven. Who else of the qualifications I just went
over. Yesg, sir. What's your name, Six?

BY JUROR HARRIS: Clarence Harris.

BY THE COURT: All right. Mr. Harris, what's your
problem? |

BY JUROR HARRIS: BAbout the reading and spelling.
BY THE COURT: Okay. You're telling me under your
oath that --

BY JUROR HARRIS: Right.

BY THE COURT: Well, I appreciate you being up here,

and I will excuse you. That's Mr. Clarence Harris. Juror

—_
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numbey twenty, Mr. Clarence Harris, will be excuse& for a
legal reason. 1 appreciate you being up here. You will
be excused.
{(Juror Harris is excused.)

BY DEPUTY WISNER: Juror number two seventy, Mrs.
IDiana. Smith.
BY THE COURT: All right. Ms. Smith, what --
BY JUROR SMITH: I don't live here any more. I live
in Baton Rouge, Louigiana.
BY THE COURT: You live in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.
Under your oath, you have moved to Baton Rouge, Louisiana.
BY JUROR SMITH: Yes.
BY THE COURT: How long have you been gone?
BY JUROR SMITH: About six months.
BY THE COURT: Okay. You need to register to vote if
vou've not done so already. S0 I appreciate you being up
here, but you'll be excused. Juror number two seventy,
Diana Smith, is no longer a resident of Adams County, and,
therefore, she will be excused. That's number two
seventy, Diane Smith.
{(Juror Smith is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir. What's youxr name, sir?

BY JUROR BLAND: Maurey Bland.

BY THE CQURT: Mr. Bland. What's the problem.

BY JUROR BLAND: I live in Jefferson County.

BY THE COURT: Mr. Maurey Tra'shawn. All right. You
live in Jefferson County --
- BY JURCR BLAND: Yes.

BY THE COURT: -- undexr your cath. Okay. If you

Jury Qualification 64 .
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haven't registered to vote up there, you need to go do so.

Ckay. I will excuse you, but vyou're telling wme that's the

way it is?

BY JUROR BLAND: Right.

BY THE COURT: Juror number one sixty-four, Mr.
Bland, will be excused. He's no longer a resident of
Adams County. He lives in Jefferson County.

BY MR. HARPER: What's that name again, Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Maurey ﬁland.

{Juror Bland is excused.)

BY THE COURT: What's your name?

BY JUROR CONNER: Charles Conner.

BY THE CQURT: Mr. Comner, what's the problem?

BY JUROR CONNER: Sale of alcohol.

BY THE COURT: Wwhat?

‘BY JUROR CONNER: Sale of alcohol.

BY THE COURT: You got convicted. How long ago?

BY JUROR CONNER: A year ago. '

BY THE COURT: Okay. Well, that's the law. Let me
get this, and I'1ll -- that's been in the law for a long
time. I appreciate you being up here.

BY THE COURT: Juror number one eighty~£our, Charles
Edward Conner, will be excused for a legal reason. HNumbex
one eighty-four.

(Juror Conner is excused.}

BY THE COURT: Is anyone else on those qualifications
that I have just gone over?
(No respomnse.)

BY THE COURT: All right. ULadies and gentlemen,

65
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Jury Qualification 66
also undex the law, I need to know if there's anyone that
has actually served on a jury within the last two years.
Under the law if you have and as long as we have a
sufficient number of jurors, you can be excused. Let me

explain what that means. That doesn't just mean you were

tcalled for jury duty. It means that you actually came up

here before myself or Judge Sanders and sat on a jury in
a case or you served on the grand jury within the last two
years. Also I need to know if anybody has a case of vour
own that is actually pending in this court. That doesn't
mean it's in your husband's name or your wife's name or
it's ovexr with. If it’'s a case in this court that is in
yvour name that ig still geing on, I need to know about
that also. Does anybody have any response to these two
questions? Anybody served Qithin the last two years
or have a case going on? Yes, sir. If you will --

BY JUROR FORESMAN: I can't remember
if it was two years on longer.

BY THE COURT: What is your name, please?

BY JUROR FORESMAN: Tom Foresman.

BY THE COURT: All right. Mr. Foresman, do you
recall what case it was on?

BY JUROR FORESMAN: It was the murder of that West
boy.

BY THE COURT: I think that's been over two years.
I know time will get away from you. I think I was the
judge on that case. Mr. Harper, do you recall that case?

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, gir --

BY THE COURT: I'm alwmost certain that's been over
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Jury Qualification
two years. Yes, ma'am. State your name. Let me state
this, ladies and gentlemen. Seated right below me is Mrs.
Melanie Murray. She's the official court reporter, and
it's her job to take down everything that takes place at
the trial, including this jury gualification and jury
selection. So if you do have a response, let's be sure to
speak out clearly so she can hear. Yes, ma'am. What is
your name, first of all?

BY JUROR SMITH: Claver Smith.

BY THE COURT: Mrs. Smith, what response do you have?
Did you actually serve within two years or --

BY JUROR SMITH: I am not sure if it was two years
ago but --

BY THE COURT: What casé was that on?

BY JUROR SMITH: A young man that gotten beaten. I
am not sure. I am not sure.

BY THE CQURT: I tell you what, we'll check on that,
but you're not sure how iong ago that was?

BY JUROR SMITH: No.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Who else?

BY JUROR ALLEN: I just wanted to know --

BY THE COURT: State your name, please, ma'am.

BY JUROR ALLEN: Sanguanette Allen. What kind of
case do you mean when you have a case pending? I mean --

BY THE COURT: 1t's any case that's in the Circuit
Court. We deal with criminal cases, when someone is
charged .with a crime or lawsuits when someone has a car
wreck oxr something like that, but there's other types of

courts and everything, but unless you know of -- if you
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Jury Qualification
know of a case that you have in this couxt, I need to know
about that.

BY JUROR ALLEN: I don't know if it's hexre or not.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Anyone else on those last two
qualifications? Yes, sir.

BY JUROR WHITNEY: Yes, sir. I'm Richard Whitney.

I served on the jury for the ex-police cofficer who was
accused of sexual battery with a minor. I am not sure --

BY THE COURT: Which case -- wasg that Judge Sander's
case?

BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: That wés Judge Sanders.

BY THE COURT: Was that within two years? Okay. Mr.
Whitney, and you actually served on the jury on that case?
BY JUROR WHITNEY: Yes, sir. I was the jury foreman.
BRY THE COURT: Well, I am advised that was before
Judge Sanders and that was within the last two years. So
I will excuse you. Under the law, ladies and gentlemen,
once you serve, you basicélly have a two-year grace period
that you are not subject to being called again. So since
vou did your duty and served within the last two years, I
will excuse you and --

BY JUROR WHITNEY: I'm still willing.

BY THE COURT: Do what?

BY JUROR WHITNEY: I am still willing.

BY THE COURT: You're still willing? Okay.
Well, I appreciate that. I wish everybody had your

httitude about that, but if you actually sat on a jury, I

Wwill excuse you at this time. You may go.

{Juror Whitney is excused.)
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Jury Qualification 69

BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, what was his name?

BY MR. HARPER: One forty-nine, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: That's number one forty-nine, Mr,
Whitney. Yes. Who else? Yes, sir.

BY JUROR DAVIS: Dan Davis, Junior. The case out on
Cemetery Road, the murder earlier in the year, and I
served under Judge Sanders.

BY THE COURT: That was this year, wasn't it? And
you were actually on the jury?

BY JUROR DAVIS: Right.

BY THE COURT: COkay. Mr. Davis, I will excuse you.
You've certainly done your duty also. Mr. Dan Davis, did
you say?

BY JURCR DAVIS: Yes.

BY THE COURT: All right. You will be excused.
{(Juror Davis is excused.)

BY THE COURT: That's number sixty-seven. Anyone
else? Yes, ma'am.

BY JUROR JOHNSON: I was at the murder trial on
Morgantown -- I found the body in Marblestone.

BY THE COURT: What's your name, please, ma'am.

BY JURCR JOHNSON: Theodora B. Johnson.

BY THE COURT: Was this the case earlier this year
with Judge Sanders?

BY JURCR JOHNSON: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: That's the same case, I believe.

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: And you were actually on the jury in

that case?

b
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Jury Qualification 70

BY JUROR JOHNSON: I was a witness.

BY THE COQURT: Oh, you were a witness. Okay. Tﬁat
doesn't count if you were a witness.
{Laughter.)

BY TEE COURT: That's Mrs. Johnson. Anyone else that
actually served on the jury in the last two yearg?
(No response.)

BY THE COURT: Okay. All right. Now, ladies and
gentlemen, there are also certain personal exemptions that

are set out by law. First of all, I am going to go

|through these. There's a personal exemption for anyone

that's age sixty-five or older. If you're sixty-five or
older, vou have a right to ask the Court to be excused and
that will be honored without any further explanation. You
don't have to give any explanation at all, but f want to
make sure that if that applies to anyone, that doesn't
mean that you can't serve, and I want to strongly
encourage you to stay and serve if at all possible. But
if there is anyone that is sixty-five'?ears of age or
older, you have a right to ask to be excused, and that
will be honored without any further explanation. Also if
you have any serious medical problems that will make it
difficult for you to serve on jury duty, I'll be glad to
hear from you about those. Those are supposed to be done
with a medical excuse. I believe it states that on the
back of your summons. I know my office has handled a
nunbex of those already where people have submitted
medical excuses from doctors, but if you do have any

serioug medical problem that you won't be able to serve on
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Jury Qualification 71
jury duty, I'll be glad tc hear from you about that. Also
the one that comes up most often is if it's going to cause
you any serious financial hardship. Listen carefully to
what I've got to say about that. What that is intended
for in the law is a solely run or operated business, a
person like a barber or beautician that has‘their own
business and if you're not -- going to be up here on jury
duty, you wouldn't be even there available to keep your
business open. That's what that is set up for. I realize
it's a hardship to everybody to some extent to be up here .
for jury duty. I also realize it's a hardship like with
the school system, with the hospital, with some of iarger
employers in the county, but that doesn't matter becquse
this comes fixst. If it's going to cause you problems on
your job and evexrything, I am sorry, but under the law,-

this comes first. That's what the law is. It's so strong

that your employer cannot try to get you or pressure you

to try to get you to get off jury duty. If they do, they
may not be realizing it, but they are actually committing
a crime that is in the law to prevent someone from doing
that. So when problems come up or when you have a sudden
emergency or sickness, you have to make arrangements at
work, your employer does, and under law, this comes first.
S0, please, I want to tell you right ﬁow. I'm not gbing
to be able to excuse anybody for that reason just because
there maf not be anybody else at work that can do what you
do and it's going to cause problems at work because that's
not a recognized legal excuse undex the law. Let me say

this about these matters that I've just gone over,
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Jury Qualification 72
Ladies and gentlemen, we have the best justice system,
gystem of justice in the world.. When someocne is charged
with a crime, when someone has a lawsuit that they bring,
we do here in open court. Anybody can come in here and
see. It's open to everyone. We decide the case in court
under ouxr laws and system of justice, but the thing that
makes it work are citizens such as yourself coming up here
to serve as jurors. That is the backbone and heért of the
system. We could not fuﬁction. We could not dispose of
the business of the court without citizens such as
yourself being able to come up here and serve on jury duty
and provide the juries that we need to decide these

cases. I am going tell you something. You heard these
two pecple that served within the last two years. Once
you_serve, yvou basically have an exemption for a two-year
period of time. That's not too much to ask for the rights
and freedoms that we enjoy. We enjoy a lot éf rights and
freedomg in this nation, and everybody is glad that we do
thave those rights and freedoms, and there have been a lot
of people over the years that have laid down -- that have
given tremendous sacrifices, including laying down their
lives, so that we all can enjoy these rigbts and

freedoms. So that's not too much to ask of you. I realize
it may be an inconvenience and a hardship, but that's not
toco much to ask of you to set aside some Eime and stop
what you're doing and come up here every two years or be
subject -- you don't have to do it every two years, but
you have to be subject to being called every two years to

come up here and serve on jury duty. So let's keep that
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Jury Qualificétion 73
in mind. Yes, sir. You got something?

BY JUROR HUFF: Yes, sir. Years ago, my second wife
had me committed to Whitfield for --

BY THE COURT: What's your name? What your name,
8ir?

BY JUROR HUFF: My name is Louis Huff.

BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Louis Huff.

BY THE COURT: Louis Huff? Here it is. All right.
Mr. Huff, do you feel like it would be best if you were
excused from jury duty?

BY JUROR HUFF: No, I'm all right with it. I just
want to let you know where I been.

BY THE COURT: Okay. How long ago was that?

BY JUROR HUFF: Been about fourteen years ago or
something like that.

BY THE COURT: That's juror one ninety-three. If
you'll go have a seat then. Ladies and gentlemen, under
your oaths, again, what I was getting at, ladies and

gentlemen. We enjoy a lot of rights. 8o let's please try

leo keep these to an absolute minimum. I realize that

sometimas there are just some situations that cannot be
helped, but let's please try to keep these to an absolute
minimum. Now, first of all, these matters I have gone
over, sixty-five years of age or older, severe wedical
problems, or serious hardship. First of all, as to this
group of jurdr over here, is anybody that has any
responses undex your oaths to these? Yes, ma’am. Stand up
and state your name.

BY JUROR WHITE: Roberta White.

PRI
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Jury.Qualification 74
BY THE COURT: What's --

BY JURCR WHITE: Roberta White.

BY THE CQURT: Roberta White. Mrs. White, what is --
Lf you'll come forward and state your problem. What's
your problem, Mrs. White? You can just wait there, Mrs.
White. What's your problem?

BY JUROR WHITE: 1It's a medical condition.

(Several jurors get up to coﬁe to the bench.)

BY THE COURT: Whoa, whoa, everybody -- everybody,
Let*s just kind of stay right where they are. We'zre not
hoilng to come down here and form a line. All right.

Mrs. White, do you work anywhere?

BY JUROR WHITE: No.

BY THE COURT: What do you do during the daytime?

BY JURQOR WHITE: Nothing.

BY THE COURT: You stay at home?

BY JUROR WHITE: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: And you feel like you would be unable
Lo serve on jury dukby?

BY JUROR WHITE: Because of my medical conditicn.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Let the record show that this
juror has provided the Court with a letter from the
University Internal Medicine Associates, and the Court is
satisfied pursuant to letter that she will be umnable to
serve as a juror, and, therefore, she will be excused for
this medical reason that's been provided. That's Mrs.
ﬁoberta White. Let me get her number. That's Mrs. Robert

hite, number twenty-seven. Who's next? Yes, ma'am. You

kan just stand right there, ma'am. BState your name.

R P
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fury Qualification 75

BY JUROR HARRIS: I called up here and asked for an

bxcuse because I have a son with a broke hip. He can't

get up and down by hisself and there's no one at home with

him, and got to go home and give --

BY THE COURT: What is youxr name, please, ma'am?

BY JUROR HARRIS: Ruth Harris. Ruth Mae Haxris.

BY THE COQURT: All right, Ms. Harris. How old is
your son?

BY JUROR HARRIS: My son is forty-five.

BY THE COURT: Aand he has a broke hip?

BY JUROR HARRIS: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: And you're the only one that can care
for him at home?

BY JUROR HARRIS: 1 am the only one there. Him and
me _

BY THE COURT: 1Is he confined to his bed or what?
BY JUROR HARRIS: He's on crubtches, but you have to
help him get around. He can walk through the house, but
he's scared he'll fall.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Does either the State or the
defense have any objection to this jury being excused for
this reason.

BY MR. HARPER: No, Your Honor.

BY MR. SERMOS: No, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Then you will excused, and I
understand that sgituation. I appreciate you being up
here.

BY JUROR HARRIS: I had already called. Thank you.

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Who's next? All right.
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Fury Qualification . | 76
ir . Reed.

BY JURCR REED: 1I'm past sixty-five.

BY THE COURT: BAll right. Mr. Reed, I am not going

co check your ID.

 Laughtex.}

BY THE COURT: This juror is well known to the Court,

but you do wish to be excused; is that right?

BY JURCR REED: Yes, sir.

BY‘THE COURT: Well, you've earned your right to be
bxcused, and I appreciate you coming up here., That's
juror Oscar Reed, number one twenty-two.

{Mr. Reed is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Qkay. Anybody else over here?

BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: The next 1ad§ right here.
BY THE COURT: All right. Yes, ma'am. State your
name .

BY JUROR ALLEN: Sanquanette Allen. 1It's --

BY THE COURT: What's your name?

BY JUROR ALLEN: Sanquanette Allen.

BY THE COURT: Mrs. Allen, do you have any type of
nedical excuse or reason with you?

BY JURCR ALLEN: No, sir. I don't.

BY THE COURT: Why would you not be able to serve as
5 juror?

BY JUROR ALLEN: Because 1 am in pain, and I don't
Fhink I would be able to sit as long as it might require.
I really am.

BY THE COURT: Ma‘am, do ?ou work anywhere?

BY JUROR ALLEN: No. T am a student.

PR




LASEA BONDFORMA () FENGAD + 1600+ 811 BEDF  vew panged.com

10
11
12
13
14
1S
1c
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29
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BY THE COURT: What? .
BY JUROR ALLEN: I don't work.
BY THE COURT: You stay at home?

BY JUROR ALLEN: I am a student.

BY THE COURT: You're a student. Where are you a
student at?
BY JUROR ALLEN: Alcorn.

BY THE COURT: Well, ma'am, I can't excuse you for
Fhis if you're going to be in classes and things.
BY JUROR ALLEN: Well, classes are out this week
hntil January the Sth.

BY THE COURT: But you are a regular student?

BY JUROR ALLEN: Yes, sir.
. BY THE COURT: Well, I'm going to say this. If
pnybody gets sick or comes up during the course of this or
if you have a problem with pain or something, we'll deal
with it, but this is a serious matter, and I have
restrictions on me as far as the law. So I'm going to
ask, if you will, if you'll just have a seat right now,
but we'll make a notation of that.
BY JUROR ALLEN: Thank you.
BY THE COURT: Who is next? B&Anyone else over here?
BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Ms. Knowles. Well --
BY THE COURT: All right. Yes, ma'am. If vyou can
just --
BY JUROR KNWOWLES: I am Leotine Knowles, and I am
Lilling to serve, but I am leaving in town for the
holidays tomorrow. I can serve today but not tomorrow.

I'll} be out of town.
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Jury Qualification - 78
BY THE COURT: What is your name, please, ma'am?

BY JUROR KNOWLES: Leotine Knowles.

BY THE COURT: Leotine Knowles. Yes, ma'‘am. You're
boing out of town? |

BY JUROR KNOWLES: Tomorrow. Yes. I can serve

.foday. I am willing to serve.

BY THE COURT: This is something that you've had
scheduled for awhile?

BY JUROR KNOWLES: Beg your pardon?

BY THE COURT: I say this is a trip out of town that
vou've had scheduled for a while?

BY JUROR KNOWLES: No. It's just something that came
p.  It's sort of an emergency.

BY THE COURT: I mean, does it involve like family or
what ? |

BY JUROR KNOWLES: Yes. I don't mind serving today,
and I don't mind.serving on jury duty, but I didn't know
this was coming up. If I had known, I would have called
vyou before now, but I didn't know it until last night.

BY THE COURT: A1l right.

BY JUROR KNOWLES: And there was no way for me to
notify you.

BY THE COURT: With that being the situation, it
sounds to the Court that this would bé oppressive to keep
this juror or that her service would tend to work

oppressive hardship on her. Does either the State or the

'defense have any objections to this juror being excused?

BY MR. HARPER: No, Your Honor.

BY MR. SERMOS: ©No, Your Honor.

N Err P
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3ury Qualification
BY JUROR KNOWLES: Well, I can stay today. Do you
vant me to stay today?
BY THE COURT: No, ma'am. It's not going to help us
if you just stay today.
BY JUROR KNOWLES: Huh?
BY THE COURT: It's not going to help us to be today.
You will be excused.

BY JUROR KNWOWLES: 'Thank you.
(Juror Knowleg is excused.)

BY THE COURT: All right.

BY JUROR DAVIS: Francis --

BY THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY JURCR DAVIS: Francis Davis. I have got a
doctor!'s excuse;
BY THE COURT: If you’ll bring that to me and let me
see that.
(The Court is handed a document.)

BY THE COURT: Ms. Davis, do you work anywhere?

BY JUROR DAVIS: No, I don'‘t.

BY THE COURT: Are ?ou just confined to your home
and you stay at your home during the day?
BY JUROR DAVIS: And when I sit very long, my knee
tightens up, and I can't hardly move.
BY THE CQURT: Okay. Let the record show that the
juror Lillian Francis Davis who's number -~-
BY MR. HARPER: One seventy-eight.
BY THE CQOURT: One eighty-seven. You live on
Beechwood Lane; is that right? Has presented a medical

excuse to the Court from a medical doctor which the Court

79
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Tury Qualification 80
Finds is proper and that she does not work and is not able
Lo work because of some medical problems, and the Court
Finds that this would be a medical hardship for her to
serve and she will be excused. I appreciate you being up
here. You will be excused.
{Jurcr Davis is excused.)

BY THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir.

BY JUROR JOHNSON: I am Walter D. Johnson, Senior.

BY THE COURT: Walter Johnson, Senior? Yes, sir.

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Right. I am over sixty-five.

BY THE CQURT: You're over sixty-five. Did you hear
what I said. You can stay if you want to,.now.
BY JUROR JOHNSON: I got a pocketful of medicine I
take all the time.
BY THE COURT: Well, you have that right undex the
law, and I will excuse you, and I do appreciate you being
up here. That's Walter James Johnson?
BY JUROR JCHNSON: Walter James Johnson, Senior.
BY THE COURT: That's juror one fifty-four, and he'll
be excused under the law. 1 do appreciate you being up
here.
(Juror Johnson is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yeg, ma'am.

BY JUROR LYLES: Annie Lyles, juror two fifty-five.

I have a doctor's appointment. I need to go to the

{doctor. My hand is steady swelling. I am a diabetic. I

need to have it checked.
BRY THE COURT: This is Ms. Annie Lyles?

BY JUROR LYLES: Yes, sir.

ETITme
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BY THE COURT: This is juror numbex two fifty-five.

When is your doctor's appointment scheduled?

BY JUROR LYLES: Thié morning. As soon as I get back

out to sit with Mrs., C. C. Miller. I left work this

moxrning. I stayed there all night. As soon as I get back

with Dr. Leckie. He's in the office with Dr. Borum.

He's going to check my arm.

BY THE COURT: Are you going to be working this week?

BY JUROR LYLES: Well, I sit with her. I am a

caregiver. I stayed last night, but I have a doctor's

appointment on account of my arm.

BY THE COURT: Who is your appointment with?

BY JUROR LYLES: Dr. Charles Leckie. He's in the

office with Dr. Borum.

BY THE COURT: What time is this appointment?

BY JUROR LYLES: As scon as -- I supposed to call as

as scon as I leave here and get back this morming becauseh

my arm is swelling. 1It's broke out real bad. I am a

diabetic, and I have to get something for my arm before it

get any worser.

BY THE COURT: B11 right, Ms. Lyles. I don't want to
keep you from getting medical treatment, and apparently
you do have a problem that you need to go see the doctor
right away about. So I will excuse for that, Ms. Lyles,
and I appreciate you being up here, and I will excuse for
those reasons. -

BY JUROR LYLES: All right. Thank you.

BY THE COURT: You may go. That's juror number two

fifty-five, Ms. Annie B. Lyles.
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(Juroxr Lyles is excused.)}

BY THE CQURT: Yes, sir.

BY JUROR ANDERSON: Otis Ray Anderson.

BY THE CQURT: All right. Mr. Anderson, what's --

BY JURCR ANDERSCN: I have an appointment scheduled
ht the VA tomorrow morning.
BY THE COURT: Is there any way this appointment can
pe changed? Do you work anywhere?
BY JUROR ANDERSON: No. I am retired.
BY THE COURT: You'ré retired. BAnd this is a medical
hppointment at the VA center.
.BY JUROR ANDERSON: Yes.
BY THE COURT: And those appointments arxe kind of
hard to line up, aren't they? How long has this
hppointment been scheduled?
BY JUROR ANDERSON: For about a wesak.
BY THE COURT: All right. Mr. Anderson, since you
have a medical appointment that's scheduled at the VA
center, I know how it is about getting these appointments
pith these doctors and things, and you are retired. So
rou are not going to be working anywhexre. I will excuse
irou. I do appreciate you being up here, but I don't want
o interfere with you -- since you had a standing medical
hppointment. And that's tomorrow for the record?
BY JURCR ANDERSON: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: Well, I will excuse you. That's juror
number seven, Mr. Otié Anderson. You may go.
(Furor Anderson'is excused. }

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

bt b
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BY JUROR CARRADINE: How-you deing? I'm Mary Ann
Carradine. I am a beautician. Also my husband is taking
chemo. I have to take him to Jackson every week at the
bncology -- at Jackson Oncology clinic. I am the sole
provider in my house.
' BY THE COURT: All right. and you are a
self-employed beautician?
BY JUROR CARRADINE: Uh-hum.
BY THE COQURT: All righf. Mrs. Carradine, under the
law, that would qualify. That's juror number two
thirty-four and you live on Washington Street?
BY JUROR CARRADINE: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: This jurxor numberxr two thirty-four,
Mrs. Mary Ann Carradine, will be excused for a legal
reason, and I appreciate very much you being up here.
(Juror Carradine is excused.)

BY THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir.

BY JUROR GREEN: My name ig James Green --

BY THE COURT: Is James what?

BY JUROR GREEN: -- and I'm over sixty-five.

BY THE COURT: What's your last name?

BY JUROR GREEN: Green. James Green.

BY MR. HARPER: Number three, Your Honor.

BY JUROR GREEN: Number three.

BY THE COURT: Mr. Green, you are over sgixty-five; is
that correct?

BY JURQOR GREEN: Seventy.

BY THE CQURT: Seventy. Okay. You have live on

Petal Lane; is that right?

[T,
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BY JUROR GREEN: Right.
BY THE COURT: You will be excused under the law, and
I appreciate you coming up here.

BY JUROR GREEN: Thank you.

BY THE COURT: Juror James Green, number three.
{Juror Green is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yeg, ma'am.

BY JUROR WIMBERLY: My name is --

BY THE COURT: I can't hardly hear you. You're going
to need to speak up.
BY JUROR WIMBERLY: My name is Amelia Wimberly, and I
need to be excused because I run a child care facility and
I would not be able to do fair job. I don't know --
BY THE COURT: Let me say this. We're going to get
into about this case after while, but as far ag -- vou run
a child care facility?
BY JUROR WIMBERLY: Yes.
BY THE COURT: 1Is this your own child care facility
or do you work fox éomeone?
BY JUROR WIMBERLY: It's family child care facility.
My gister and her husband own it.
BY THE COURT: What's the name of it?
BY JUROR WIMBERLY: Kid's College.
BY THE COQURT: Wéll, what you're going to need to do,
you're going to need to remain with us right now. We're
going to get into some questions about this case a little
bit later, but as far as under the law, that'‘s not a legal
reason I can because you technically work for someone

lelse.

84
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BY JUROR WIMBERLY: All right.

BY THE COURT: I appfeéiate you bringing it up, but
we'll get into those other gquestions later. Did the
attorneys understand?

BY MR. SERMOS: No, Your Honor. The name?

BY THE COURT: She had a question -- said she works
for a brother and sister and runs a child care, and she
really had some guestions about this partidular case. I
am not going to get into that right now.

BY MR. SERMOS: What's her nawme, please, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: It's juror number two sixty-five, Mrs.
Wimberly. Amglia Laverne Wimberly. -

BY MR, SERMOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we'll get to
some guestions about this case in quﬁ a moment. You can
go back and have a seat. But right now I'm just doing
these matters that I have gone over. Sixty-five or older,
medical problems, or a serious financial hardship. What's
your name, please, ma'am.

BY JUROR PROFICE: Delores'frofice.

BY THE COURT: Qkay. WMs. Profice, what's the
problem?

BY JUROR PROFICE: I have a severe ankle sprain and
I have an excuse from Dr. Passman.

BY THE COURT: Do you work anywhere, Ms. Profice?

BY JUROR PROFICE: Yes, I do. I have been working at
home for the last week because of my sprain. I work for
Natchez Regional.

BY THE COURT: All right. That's juror number two
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thirty-five. You live on Gayle Avenue?

BY JUROR PROFICE: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Ms. Profice, I mean, if you have a
sprain, a bad sprain, I understand, but it doesn't sound
like that would prevent you from being able to serve as a
Huror. I will be glad to lock at your excuse.

{Juror Profice hands document to the Court.)

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that the Court
has received a letter from Dr. J. C. Passman concerning
this juror. I am going to ask, if you will, if you'll
just remain with us right now, and we're going to take
this under consideration and look at this. Okay. Who is
nmext?

BY JUROR CAMERON: My name is Kendrick Cameron.

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir. Mr. Cameron.

BY JUROR CAMERON: I am work for a financial office
ag a sales rep for East Buick Pontiac, and my income in
one hundred percent based on commission and --

BY THE COURT: That's at what place do you work at?
BY JUROR CAMERON: East Buick Pontiac, Mitzubishi
Honda on John R. Junkin Drive.

BY THE COURT: Do you have any family?

BY JURCR CAMERON: Yes.

BY THE COURT: Okay. BSo you're a strictly a
commisgion salesman?

BY JURQR CAMERON: Yes. And financial office.

BY THE COURT: I imagine this is kind of a busy time
of year.

BY JUROR CAMERON: Yes, it is.
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BY THE COURT: Well, Mr. Cameron, I can understand
that, and jurors are paid a certain amount per day. I
think it's per day, but I understand that you're looking
at a pay check and what you're doing, and I understand
this is probably a busy time of the year for you. So I
don't want to create a financial hardship on you, and it
does sound like that could create a financial'hardship.
So I'm going to excuse you, Mr. Cameron, and I do
appreciate you being up here, and maybe you'll be able to
serve some other time. Okay. That's juror number one
thirty-eight, Mr. Cameron. Mr. Kendrick Cameron. The
Court finds that he is strictiy a commission salesman and
this is one of their busy times of the year, and the Court
finds that would create a hardship on that particular .
juror at this time.

{Juror Cameron is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY JUROR BLAIR: Robert Blair, number one fifty.

BY THE COURT: All right. Mxr. Blair, what --

BY JUROR BLAIR: My only reason is because I have
substandard hearing, and I can't hear what's going on.

BY THE COURT: All right. Let we see. Mr. Blair,
let me say this. You know your condition better than
anybody else.

BY JUROR BLAIR: Do what?

BY THE COURT: You know your condition better than
anybody.

{Laughter.)

BY THE COURT: Do you feel like you'd have a hard

[,
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time sitting up here and understanding what's going on and
hearing what's going on?
BY JURQR BLAIR: Yes, sir. I do. Your wvoice is
pretty good, but I couldn't hear all of what you are
saying, and when roll call was going.
BY THE COURT: 1'll excuse you. You've convinced
fme. You can go. That's juror number --

BY MR. HARPER: Omne fifty.

BY THE COURT: Number one fifty, Mr. Robert Blair.
{Juror Blair is excused.}

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY JUROR TURPINE: I am Howard Turpine. I am
seventy-two.

BY THE COURT: Okay. You want to be excused. Okay.
The Court finds that juror Mxr. Howard L. Turpine, number
one hundred twenty, is in entitled to a legal excuse.
You can go and I appreciate you coming up here.
(Juror Turpine is excused.)

BY THE COURT: This is Mr; Brice, number two
twenty-nine. What's the problem, Mr. Brice?

BY JUROR BRICE: I'm a teacher --

BY THE COURT: You're a student in Louisiana.

BY JUROR BRICE: No, sir. I am a teacher. We've got
semester exams this week.

BY THE COURT: What school do you teach at?

BY JUROR BRICE: &t. Joe.

BY THE COURT: Over at St. Joe?

BY JURQOR BRICE: Over at St. Joe?

BY THE COURT: Okay. I know -- I guess that's kind
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of a bad time.

BY JURCR BRICE: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: All rigﬁt. Let the record show this
is jurbr number two hundred twenty-nine, Mr. Brice. He's
a teacher at a local school. I have kids myself. I do
know they are having tests this week, and the Court finds
that this would create a hardship, not necessarily a
financial hardship, but this would be oppressive, not just
to him but to the other students, and the Court does not
want to interfere with the learning process of anyone, and
I understand that, Mr. Brice, and if there was some other
time of the year when a substitute could do, I might be
inclined to do that, but I will excuse you for this
reason. That's Mr. Brice, number two hundred twenty-nine.
(Juror Brice is excusged.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. What's your--

BY JUROCR JONES: 1 have a four-month-old sick baby at
home.

BY THE COURT: What's your name?

BY JUROR JONES: Kimberly Jones.

BY THE COURT: Kiwberly Jones. What's the problem,
Mrs. Joneas.

BY JUROR JONES: I have a four-month-old sick baby at
home and no one to care for him.

BY THE COURT: Okay. I can certainly identify with
that. Does eithexr side have any objection to Ms. Jones?
That does sound like a hardship. She has a four-month-old
PiCk babf at home.

BY MR. HARPER: No objection, Your Honor.

‘89
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BY MR. SERMOS: No objection.

BY THE COURT: All right. Ms. Jones, you can be
excused. That's Kimberly Jones, mumber --

BY MR. HARPER: One fifty-seven.

BY THE COURT: One fifty-seven.

(Juror Jones is excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY JUROR BLANKENSTEIN: Frank Blankenstein. My
mother and father-are the only ones that can sign checks
and run cur business, and they're both in New Orleans on
fnedical appeintments, and I am not sure that‘ﬁhey'd be
back before at the earliest tomorrow afternocn, and I have
merchandise coming in and freight lines and --
BY THE COURT: So you're the only one left?
BY JUROR BLANKENSTEIN: I am it. Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: And this is your family business?
BY JUROR BLANKENSTEINM: Personal business. Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: ©Okay. I can understand that. Since
they are out of town, and they're the only other ones and
they're on medical business, as I understand. I will go
phead and excuse you, Mr. Blankenstein. I appreciate you
being up here. Maybe you can serve next time. That's
juror number cone sixteen. The Court finds that would
create a hardship due to the particular circumstances set
but by the juror.
{(Juror Blankenstein excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

BY JUROR SINGLETON: My name Bambi Singleton. I have

b four month old with a medical illness. I am still out
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of work from'maternity leave.

BY TﬁE COURT: All right. Ms. Singleton, you have --
this is Linda -- no. Excuse me. You live on Barth
Street?

BY JUROR SINGLETON: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Ms. Singleten, you have a
four-month-old baby?

BY JUROR SINGLETON: With medical condition.

BY THE COURT: Who's sick at home?

BY JUROR SINGLETON: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: Do you work anywhere?

BY JUROR SINGLETON: No. I am still on maternity
leave from my job.

BY THE COURT: Because of that situation, I do find
that would be a hardship. So I will excuse you to care
for your sick child at home. That's juror numbexr one
hundred sixty-three, Ms. Single. You'll be excused.
(Juror Singleton iz excused.)

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

BY JUROR HOYE: I am Cora Hoye --

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

BY JURdR HOYE: And I go to the therapy three times a
weék. I would like to be excused.

BY THE COURT: What's the reason, now?

BY JUROR HOYE: I go to therapy.

BY THE COURT: You go to therapy. Let me see this
card, pleasé. Ms. Cora Hoye. You live on Tate Road?
BY JUROR HOYE: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: You go to therapy every week?

o
.
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BY JURCR HOYE: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: You don't work anywhere, do you?
BY JUROR HOYE: No, sir. I don't.
BY THE COURT: And you have some serious medical
problems apparently?
BY JUROR HOYE: Yes, sir. I do.
BY THE COURT: Let the record show that the Court is
zatisfied that juror number cne sixty-five, Ms. Cora Hoye,
has some serious medical problems. She's disabled, and
she's required to go to these treatments every week, and
he Couft finds that clearly she would qualify under the
law and she will.be excused.
(Juror Hoye is excused.)
BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY JUROR CARROLL: I'm Mr. Herman Carxrroll.
BY THE COURT: Mr. Carroll, is that your name?
BY JUROR CARROLL: Carroll. Yesg, sir. C-a-r-r-o-l1-1.
BY THE COURT: Mr. Herman Carroll, number.one hundred
fourteen. What's the problem?
BY JUROR CARROLL: I got two parents in the eighties.
They need constant supervision. Medical and -- you
know -- meals and stuff like that. 8o I have to keep an
bye on them pretty much all the time.
BY THE COURT: I understand that. Where do you work?
BY JURCR CARROLL: I don't work anywhere, sir. I
1so have a test report from my previous employer that I
Iave an ear -- you know.
BY THE COURT: Do you have that report with you?

Juror Carroll hands document to the Court.)
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BY THE COURT: All right. And you look after your
mother and father?

BY JUROR CARROLL: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Do they live out near you in
Broadmoor?

BY JUROR CARROLL: I live with them on Brenham Avenue

BY THE COURT: You live with them?

BY JUROR CARROLL: Yeah. 46 Brenham Avenue.

BY THE COURT: You don't work anywhere?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir. I do. I got an early
morning job as a carrier for the Democrat that takes me
about two hours te run the route and -- you know -- get
back in.

BY THE COURT: What kind of care do your mother and
Father need? I mean, are they confined to bed or
wheelchair or anything like that?

BY JUROR CARROLL: Well, no, they're not confined to
8 bed or wheelchair, but they -~ you know -- pretty shaky,
rou might say, and they -- you know -- memory kind -- you
know -- of off. 8o -- and they -- you know -- at that
hge, they sleep a lot and sometimes don't know what time
Lo take their wedicine and stuff. So I just trxy to keep
A1t eyé on them.

BY THE COURT: They take a lot of medicine. You're
the one that makes sure they take their wmedicine.

BY JUROR CARROIL: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: - Who cooks their meals for them?

BY JUROR CARROLL: I either cook it or -- you know --

83
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go out to the store and get it for them.
BY THE COURT: Okay. All right. Mr. Carroll, I am
going to go ahead and excuse you. I don't want them going
without any care or anything. I will accept your
statements under ocath to the Court, and, for these
reasons, 1 will go ahead and excuse you.

BY JUROR CARROLL: Thank you, Judge.

BY THE COURT: You will be allowed to go.
{Juror Carroll is excused.)

BY THE COURT: BAll right. Anyone else?
(Circuit Clerk Vines confers with the Court about a juror
that arrxived late.)
BY THE COURT: Where's Mr. Anderson? Mr. Anderson,
would you come forward, pleése. You were a little bit
late.
BY JUROR ANDERSOMN: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: You've had your ocath. There's certain
qualifications you must meet by law, and we'll run through
Lhese real quick. first of all, you must be twenty-one
years of age older. You look like you've got that one
rovered.
BY JUROR ANDERSON: I've got that- one covered.
BY THE COURT: You must be an actual resident citizen
hf Adams County. You can't have moved off and lived some
place else. You must be able to read and to write, must
hot be a convicted felon. Must not have been convicted
vith the unlawful sale of liquor within the past five
years. Must not be a common gambler or habitual drunkard.

You meet all those qualificaticns?
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BY JUROR ANDERSON: Yes, sir.

BY THE CQURT: Okay. Now, also, you must not have
actually served as a juror within the last two years.
Came up here and actually served on a jury. And you have
certain medical exemptions. If you're age sixty-five or
older, that would cover now. If you have serious medical
problems or if it's going to cause you serious financial
hardship.

BY JUROR ANDERSON: It would cause a financial
hardship.

BY THE COURT: Why -- what's your job?

BY JUROR ANDERSON: I am a bricklayer.

BY THE COURT: Who do you work for?

BY JUROR ANDERSON: éelf—employed bricklayer.

BY THE COURT: Self-employed bricklayer. Have you
ot a job you're tending to right now?

BY JUROR ANDERSON: Yes. I just got a call on the
cell phone -

BY THE COURT: You're a self-employed bricklayer.
211 right. Let the record show the Court finds that jurox

humber two hundred eighty-nine who just came in, Mr. James

derson, is a self-employed bricklayer and has an ongoing
job right now, and the Court would find that he would
alify under the law for being -- for this causing a
erioug finaricial hardship. So I will excuse you. You
can go.
gJuror Anderson is excused.)
BY THE COURT: Anyone else?

(No response.)
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BY THE COURT: At this time, let the record show that
the remaining jurors are fully competent and qualified in
all respects to try issues in the Circuit Court of Adams
Couﬁty. I'm going to ask that these jurors be given the
second oath to try issues. ‘
(Circuit Clerk Vines administers the second oath.)

BY THE COURT: All right. ©Now, the juxy has been
ualified. Before I call the case énd proceed with the
seating of the jury, are there any other matterxs that
either side has that we need to take up before that?

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, Your Honor. We have a motion
pending, I think, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Okay. All right. I am going to need
Lo see the court reporter back here just briefly. We'll
bend to that just briefly. Ladies and gentlemen, this is
Joing to be about a ten-minute recess. Now, let me say
this. There's some seats that's opened up. So certainly
some of you upstairs may want to come down here. We're
Hoing to take about a ten-minute recess. There's a couple
bf matters. First of all, you're not to talk to anybody

hbout this case. I know you haven't heard anything really

about what's been going on about this case, but you're not

Lo talk to anybody about this case. You can talk about
whatever you want to but not about this case. Also I'll
Fell you right now, the attorneys, they'll be introduced
EO you in just a little bit, but they are under strong
fules of court not to talk with you because it could be
something tptally innocent. They won't even speak to you

#hen they see you. They're not trying to high hat you or
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anything like that, but they're under very strong rules
of court. If somebody saw it, they could take it the
wrong way. Also Sheriff Ferrell, he will be here and be
the representative of the State and also his députies.
They're under strong rules of court not to really interact
with you in any way. So please keep that in mind. No one
is trying to be rude to you, but if somebody saw it, they
might could read something into that's not really there.
So please keep that in mind. Also I've been advised -- I
know parking is a problem around here, but we do have two
vehicles that I think are going to be moved. One of them
ig a Toyota Corella with license tag WNB 971, and also
there's a Lincoln, grayish and blue, Wilkinson County, ANJ
258. It may not be anybody in here, but if-they are, you
need to see about that. It's going to be about a ten-
minute recess. If you need to use the facilities, they
can use the facilities down at the end of the hall, but
please keep in mind what I said about not having any
contact with anybody. Yes, ma'am?

BY JUROR THOMAS: Excuse me, sir. I apologize when
vou were asking about everybody for the medical thing, but
yvou never did bring up about children. Now, they're not
sick and I'm their grandmother and I'm taking care of

hem, and they are in schoel, but there is no one to be
there in the evening when they get home, and I have to
Fake one to school in the morning, and one is playing
basketball.

BY THE CQURT: What is your name, ma'am?

BY JUROR THOMAS: They sent the statement out in my
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daughter's name, Bertha Faye King, but they had Bertha
Thomas, which is my last name. The first name is Irma. I
Fhink it is a mistake.
BY THE COURT: Your name is Brenda Faye King?
BY JUROR THOMAS: No. That's my daughter, and my
natme is Irma Thomas.
BY THE COURT: Where is Brenda Faye King at?
BY JUROR THOMAS: She's at work.
BY THE COURT: Well, she needs to be on up here.
BY JURCR THOMAS: Well, see, they had my name -- her
name scratched off and wmy name circled on the top of it,
ny last name. Thomas.
BY THE COURT: Okay.
BY JUROR THOMAS : That's why I figured -- you know --
it had been a mistake, and they needed me.
BY THE COURT: All right. You weren't called for
iury duty. Apparently, Ms. King was. Brenda Faye King.
50 you will be excused because you are not even really
ralled for jury duty. Okay. Again, we're going to take a
short recess at this peoint. There's a couple of matters.
¥'all please don't go in the jury rocom back here because
we'll be back there, but vou can use the facilities down
nt the end of the hall. |
(The following was heard in the chambers of the Judge,
DUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY, to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that the
Court is in chambers with counsel for each side.
First of all the Court has been qualifying the jurors

who have responded to the summons issued for a

s 1L e e
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special venire in this case. Before the Court called
the case, the Court asked if there were any matters
to take up, and the State advised that there were.
[=te} we're going to be doing that at this time. First
of all, I do want the record to show that the jurors
have been properly summonsed as provided by law in
thig case. Specifically it was the defense desire
that the summons be sent by mail which is the reason
which is often given in these cases that it's better
to do that than to have jurors pergonally summoned
the jurors and run the risk of some -- of jurors
being told what the case was for or about. 8o the
juroxrs have responded, and the Court has been
conducting the qualifications, and we're taking this
break now before I call the case to take up any
matters that either side has. Now, what does the
State have?

BY MR, HARPER: Your Honor, the State has a
motion to amend the indictment. As it was originally
indicted, it had a disjunctive element in it in that
the alleged the -- the indictment alleged that the
murder of Chlce Madison Britt was done while engaged
in the commission of a crime of sexual battery and/or
felonious abuse of a child. We would file to amend
that to delete the allegation as to the felonious
child abuse which means that the underlying felony in
this particular indictment would be simply sexual
battery.

BY THE COURT: Okay. I think I understand
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that. Do you have a written motion on that?

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sir. It was filed on the
13ch. |

BY THE COURT: Do you know if that's --

BY MR. HARPER: I have a copy of that, Judge,
and it should be in the file, but I'll be happy to
provide that to the Court. 1It's a motion with a
proposed amended indicﬁment attached to it as an
exhibit.

BY THE COURT;:; Does the defense have -- was the
defense furnished with a copy of this?

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor. We were. On
the 13th of December.

BY THE COURT: It appears to the Court that the
State is simply dropping one of the underlying felony
crimes as being charged. What says the defense to
this motion?

BY MR. SERMOS: No objection, Your Honor, but I
would state that we would have motion in limine after
the Court makes a decision.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Let the record show that
it appears that the indictment as originally returned
has two underlying felony crimes, sexual battery
and/or felony abuse and/or battery of a child.
Pursuant to law, it is not permissible to proceed or
not advisable to proceed where more than one
underlying crime is so stated. The Court finds that
clearly the defense would be on notice as to what the

charges are, and that there's -- I can perceive of no
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prejudice to the defense, 'and it's been stated they
have no objectibn to this, tec the State so awmending.
So, therefore, the. amendment will be allowed, and
that means that the only underlying crime charged
will be that of sexual battery in this case, and
let's see. I believe you have the -- ig that the
section that's stated? 1Is the gection number propexr?

BY MR. HARPER: VYes, sir.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: All right. And there has been a
written motion. S0 let the record show that the
Court will so0 amend the indictment, and BExhibit A is
a copy of the indictment that has been included with
this, and that will be the amended indictment, the
‘form set out in Exhibit A in this motion, which,
again, will reflect that the only underlying felony
crime will be that of sexual battery.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Your Honor, there's one
minor clerical matter. The name Jeffrey, is it
spelled J-e-f-f-e-r-y or J-e-f-f-r-e-y, and those
names tend to be used interchangeably in our -- 1
apoclogize for any inconsistency. 1 am not sure how
the defendant cares to --

BY THE COURT: Myx. Havard, how do you spell your
first name?

BY THE DEFENDANT: R-e-y.

BY THE COURT: J-e-f-f-r-e-y. Let the record
show it will be amended to reflect that, and we'll

try to correct that. R-e-y. Does the State have

[T T N,
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anything furthexr at this time?

BY MR. SERMOS: Yes, Your Honor.

BY MR. CLARK: No. The State.

BY MR. SERMOS: I'm sorxry.

BY MR. HARPER: No, sir. I believe that's all
we have, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Does the defense have anything
further?

BY MR. SERMOS: We do, Your Honor. I am sorry.
I was thinking of something else. Yes, Your Honor.
We have -- based on the Court doing that, we have a
motion in limine, and here is essentially.what it is,
Your Honor. 8Since the indictment has been amended,
we ask the Court to exclude introduction into
evidence any testimony about the underlying cause of

death of the child which is the felony child abuse.

~ What we would include and ask the Court to fin& not

admissible in the case in chief is any testimony by
Dr. Hayne concerning shaken baby syndrome, the damage
to the body of the child, any of that, and we would
ask the Court based on what we're sgaying is any
evidence other than evidence that would tend to show
sexual battery or the commission thereof on the
child, that evidence is inadmissible we contend in
the case in chief and would have to be submitted
during the sentencing phase as an aggravator because
what the State has done as I read the jﬁry

instructions, they have made felony child abuse an

aggravator now rather than a main underlying felony
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in the indictment, and we feel it's an absolute
constitutional and even statutory issue that to go
forward in the case in chief with the information
about the -- anything other than the child is
actually dead would be allowing the State to
egsentially develop two underlying felonies and
essentially prove beyond a reasonable doubt or
attempt to a felony child abuse which is an issue now
for the sentencing phase, not the guilt phase.

BY MR. HARPER: If I may respond, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir,

BY MR. HARPER: Very simply the charge is, of
course, capital murder which is the commissicon of a
murder while in the commission of another crime, in
thig particular case, sexual battery. It would be
incumbent upon us as an element of the crime to prove-
that a murder resulted from that commission of that
crime or while that érime was being committed or
shortly there -- or in the general vicinity or at the
time that that crime was committed. To follow what
Mr. Sermos is suggesting would be to indicate, for
example, that if someone committed an armed robbery
and shot someone and killed them while in the
commission of that armed robbery, then it would be
inadmissible to show evidence in the case in chief
that somebody got shot or that if the person shot the
victim while committed that armed robbery. This is
an element of the crime that we have to prove, and we

would submit to the Court that we obviously should be

RN
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able to and would be, in fact, required to prove
that. That the murder was committed and how it was
committed while the crime of sexual battery was being
committed.

BY MR. SERMOS: May I respond, Your Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.

BY MR. SERMOS: Your Honor, here is the nexus in
that and why I think Mr. Harper is wrong on that. IEf
it were an armed robbery, yes, you do have a body,
and there was somebody that testified or where the
circumétances would show that the person shot
somebody else and took the money and left. 1In this
cage and the reason we feel this is different that in
the fact as Mr. Harper just said there was underlying
felony of armed robbery and death. In this case with
essentially, and it was in the indictment with at-
least two underlying felonies; the circumstances here
would be -- and I will revexrse it for the Court. Had
the State chose to go felony child abuse, then I'd be
making the gsame motion to keep out anything to do
with sexual battery, and that would lead into the
death of the child. What we'rye asking the Court to
do is we obviously know that the child is deceased.
Is that any physician that testifies, Dr. Hayne, only
be allowed to say, yes. The child is deceased. The
child and the child died and was brought to the
emergency room and died, but as far as anything other
than, for example, what the State may tend to want to

show about what a doctor saw at the emergency room




LASER BOND FORM A 9 PENGAD » 1-307: 631+ 08 03 + W pangid.com

10
11
12
13
14
15
le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

25

JURY OUT - MOTION

regarding any sequelae or any indications of sexual
battery could be admissgible, but as far as anything
about Dr. Hayne's testimony other than the child was
brought in and he autopsied her and she's dead.
Anything to do about to show the felony child abuse
would only be admissible in the sentencing phase
because they've already got their underlying felony.
The State is not being deprived as Mr. Harper stated
as would be in a robbery if you weren't allowed to
show the person was dead. Of coursge, they can show
he's dead and the method of death, but in this case,
the underlying felony isgs different because sowmeone
can have felony child abuse and be killed, Your
Honor, or die. Whereas a person can have sexual
battery and then noﬁ die, or a person can be
feloniously child abused and not die.

BY MR. HARPER: Somebody could commit an armed
robbery and not shoot somebody in the process of it
and that person not die. It's ludicrous to say that
we can't show how this child was killéd while this
other crime was being committed.

BY THE COURT: Let the record show that the
motion will be granted in part and denied in part.
The Court finds that now although the indictment has
been amended to provide only one underlying felony
crime, that of sexual battery, the State is still
required to prove the element that the defendant did
kill and murder the.victim with or without design to

affect death. Therefore, the State will be allowed

105

R




LABER GOND FORM A {8 PENOAD « 1-800-631-0809 = wnDanid £rn

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

Y

FTURY OUT - MOTIONW 106
to present any evidence of the matters referred to by
defense counsgel as long as they go to the manner or
the cause of the death. However, if there is now any
evidence of child abuse that does not go to the
manner and cause of death, then the Court would
sustain the motion as to that. So you are not -- you
won't be allowed to go into the underlying matter
that was previously set out by the indictment of the
felony child abuse unless it goes to the manner and
cause of death.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sgir. That's all we would
intend to do.

BY MR. ROSENBLATT: Oxr unless it goeg to the
commission of a sexual battery.

BY THE COURT: That's right, but it can't be
something -- counsel is correct. That to the
extent -- it deesn't go to what‘s now your elements,
you can't bring it out.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, sir. And we certainly
wouldn't do that, Your Honor.

BY THE CbURT: Is thefe anything further?

BY MR. SERMOS: The only th'ing I would add,
Your Honor, is that -- to phrase for the record is
that motion was brought under and for rights of the
defendant Mr. Havard under the Sixth, Eighﬁh, and
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States
Constitution and its concurrent Mississippi
Constitution.

BY THE COURT: Let the record so reflect. Now,
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before we proceed with voir dire, let me get one
thing on the record that I have already notified all
counsel about, and the Court will conduct its own
voir dire as is required. Each side, of course, will
be allowed to conduct their voir dire. I will ask
some questions of the jury as to views as to the
death penalty as is required. What I will do will be
attempt to identify who either has serious problems
with maybe imposing the death penalty, who would just
automatically reject it. BAlso with those who would
automatically impose it in the event that the
defendant is found guilty. What I will be attempting
to do will be to identify jurors that need to be
examined further. You, of course, will be allowed to
in addition to your regular voir dire ask any
gquestion about death penalty views, but I don't want
either side going into specific jurors about their
gpecific death penalty views in front of the other
jurors. The Court will allow ample opportunity to do
that individually as to those juries who so identify
that they have some belief about the death penalty
one way or the other that needs to be inquired in to
further. Do y'all understand me about that?

BY MR. SERMOS: Right. I do have a question,
Your Honor.

EY THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. SERMOS: I just want to make sure what
we're talking about it here. Foxr example, if you

asked the reverse Witherspoon question, is there

g
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anyone who would automatically impoge the death
penalty if this person is convicted f£ér the charge,
and if nobody responds are you -- I just want to
know -- are you going --

BY THE COURT: You can go in further and you can
follow up on the Court's questions, but if somebody
does raise their hand, what I'm asking is that we
leave it at that and themn that jurox, I will allow
you to examine individually in sequestered voir dire.

BY MR. HARPER: Ckay, sir.

BY THE COURT: No, you can absolutely go into
those guestions,

BY MR. SERMOS: The one question that I'l1l ask
you right now because you said we don't want.to go
into a long -- and I agree with that. However, one
question that I've developed and used recently in a
capital case was this and I'll then -- one of the
questions especially was to the individual basis or
panel, probably not in the general, but is that --
does everyone here or do you understand the law never
requires you to impose the penalty of death. Do you
call that an -- is that an offensive question under
your point?

BY THE COURT: No. I*ll alliow you to question
the jurors. I just don't want to get to the point of
really --

BY MR. SERMOS: Right.

BY THE COURT: -- instructing them what the law

is --
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BY MR. SERMOS: We don't -- no, I wasn't going
to -~ that's the only time I use the word "the law®
about, but I just wanted to make sure.

BY THE COURT: And that is the whole basis that
jurors are to consider it fairly under the law and
the evidence. Okay. Anything furthex?

BY MR. HARPER: Not with the State.

BY MR. SERMOS: One thing, Your Honor. As far
as the State is proposing in chambers, Your Honor,
about the sheriff serving as case agent --

BY THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. SERMOS: We would object to that, Your
Honor, for two reasons.

BY THE COURT: What's the reason for that?

BY MR. SERMOS: The first reason, Your Honor, Qn
the indictment that's been amended now by the Court,
the witneas John Manley, and second reason is 1f he
wexre to be the case agent, we would certainly reguest
that he be -- testify before anyone else.

BY THE COURT: Does the State intend to call him
as a witness in this case?

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honor, to be perfectly
frank, we hadn't made a final decision on that. We
don't anticipate it. If we did, it would be for a
very genexral purpose, but, as I said --

BY THE COURT: He's really not a really factual
witness to anything --

BY MR. HARPER: No, sir,

'BY THE COURT: -- as far as the investigation.

b
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BY MR. HARPER: He was called out the night of
the offense --

BY MR. CLARK: He went to the hospital and saw
the baby.

BY MR. HARPER: Yes, six. But he was not the
-- he was not the -- I mean, of course, as the
sheriff, the supervisor of the investigation, but he
had Major Manley was, in fact, the chief
investigating officer in the case.

BY THE CCOURT: All right. Make a determination.
If you intend to call him as a fact witness to what
he went and saw as your case in chief at the
hospital, then I am going to direct that he testify -
before he's allowed to remain in the courtrxcoom --

BY MR. HARPER: OQkay, sir.

BY THE COURT: -- as the case agent, but if
you're not going to call him for that purpose, he'll
be allowed to remain as the case agent with the
understanding that something other than that of a
general nature could come up --

BY MR. HARPER: Okay, sir.

BY THE COURT: -- later om.
parties returned to the courtroom and the following
was made of record, IN THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY,
to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: At this time, the Court is going
to call Case Number 02-XR-141 in the matter of the
State of Mississippi versus Jeffrey Keith Havard.

What says the State at this time?

110
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BY ﬁR. HARPER: Please the Court, Your Honor.
The State is ready to proceed.
BY THE CQURT: What says the defendant?
BY MR. SERMOS: Ready, Your Honor.
BY THE COQURT: All right. At this time, the
Court is going to ask the clerk to seat the jurors.
Now, ladies and gentlemen, first of all, those of you
seated over here, I'm sorry. You're going to have to
get up because this is where we're going to start
seating the jurors. If you'll just kind of stand,
we'll be -- everybody will be seated just
momentarily. Ladies and gentlemen, as your name is
called, if you'll come forward and have a seat in
order in the jury box. We'll start back here at the
far left corner. Also one of the bailiffs will have
a number for you. The most important thing is that
stay in the order in which you're called. So at this
time, I'm going to go ahead and ask the clerk to seat
the jury.
The jurors were seated with numbers as follows: 1. Judy
Elizey, 2. Cynthia EBthridge, 3. Laurence McKnight, 4.

Tynda Simonton, 5. Joseph Johnson, 6. John W. Jackson, 7.

e

lridgette Jones, B. Homer Rouse, 9. Amanda Vestal, 10.

honna Fiorello, 11. Brenda Hall, 12. Kimberly Vines, 13,

idal

anquansatte Allen, 14. Erica Williams, 15. Minnie

ayberry, 16. Lauvra L. Smith, 17. Gloria Jackson, 18.
ouis Roberts, 19. Linda Blanton, 20. Georgia Dobbins, 21.
Mark Chapman, 22. Carcl Black, 23. Joyce Massey, 24.

Ytephanie Partridge, 25. Dorothy Sylvester, 26. Mary

kA et
L
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Prescott, 27. Brenda Naff, 28. Curtis Hampton, 29. Willie

Thomas, 30. Robert Montgomery, 31. Thecodora Johnson, 32.

arbara Atwell, 33. Elizabeth Johnscon, 34. Nora

ennington, 35. Oral Thomas, 36. Kenithea Hill, 37. Claver

mith, 38. John Bales, 39. James Overton, 40. James
ichardson, 41. Edith Dykes, 42. Sue C. Logan, 43. Charlyn
ten, 44. Xenisa McMorris, 45. Mary Whittington, 46. Peggy
chaniel, 47. Mary Smith, 48. Ernest Cade, 49. Wharlest
ackson, 50 Frances Brellenthine, 51. Deanne Tavlor, 52.
arﬁha Jackson, 53. Amanda Coley, S54. Bettie Ward, 55.
-alter Johnson, 56. Bill Hammett, 57. Jeffrey Wadlington,
8. Margaret Smith, 59. James Shropshire, 60. Jan D.
carborough, 61. Yolanda Townsend, 62. Cindy Atkins, 63.
eandro Dixon, 64. Janet Ballard, 65. Eddie Young, 66.
illard Ray, 67. Rosa Griffin, 68. Louis Huff; 60.

eighton White, 70. Laverne Clark, 71. John Johnson, 72.
inda Gibbons, 73. Erin Wisner, 74. Roger Carr, 75. Sherri

Risher, 76. Harold Bacon, 77. Dan Alexander, 78. Kirby

Watts, 79. William Russell, 80. Christine Franklin, 81,

Iinda Jackson, 82. Henrietta Whitley, 83. Deloris Profice,
g4 . Diane Galbreath, 85. Dorothy Bassett, B86. James

Fhomas, 87. Karen Mason, 88. Gratil Knight, 89, Sacrenelli

Moore, 90. Amelia Wimberly, 91. Thomas Foresman, 92. Henry

Hoggo, 93. Debra Byrne, %4. Vernon Perry, 35. Haroka
Harnett, 96. Mary K. Jackson, 97. Christine Bates, 98.

Oonald Berry, 99. Marjorie Martin, 100. Mary Berrett, 101.

£

effrey Shell, 102. Eddie William, 103. Douglas McIlwain,
1404. Kathy Blanchard, 105. Walter Davis, 106. John Isaac.)

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, again, I know we

Voir Dire - Court 112
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have a lot of people in here. 8So I do appreciate your
patience in bearing with us about this. We're going to
get through this. Now, again, ladies and gentlemen, I
cnow it's inconvenient to everyhody to some extent, but
this is the way our system works, and I am sorry about
that. I will txy to make it to allow your service to be
ﬁerformed with as little inconvenience as possible. Now,
first of all, this is a criminal case, and we're going to
be proceeding at this time with the jury selection
process. This is what's known as voir dire or voir dire.
It's a French term. It means to speak the truth. What
ill happen is that I will ask ydu some questions of you

s jurors, and then the attorneys for each side will be

llowed to ask you further questionsf These questions are
ot intended to embarrass you in any way or to pxry into
our pexsonal affairs on business, and the Court is not
aing to allow.that, but it is very important that these
estions are asked. Basically, you have been fully
valified under the law as meeting all the gualifications
or jurors, but still there may be something about you as
ar as who you may be related to, what you may know about
his case already, or something of that nature that in all

onesty would make it very difficult for you to be a

—r

lotally fair and impartial juror. So that is the purpose
¢f these questions that are being asked. These question,
I can tell you, there are absclutely no wrong ;r right
%nswers that you can give to these guestions. The only.

thing that you can do wrong is if you fail to respond

‘¢penly and honestly about a question that is asked of you
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yhen you should. BSo please keep that in mind. These
guestions are for your benefit as much as they are for the

fourt and for the attorneys because I can't look into your

earts and your wminds and know what's there. You have to
elp us with thié and be totally straight forward and
onest about these questions. So please keep that in
mind. Again, it's Melanie's job, the court reporter, to
take down everything that takes place. We found that this
part of the proceeding goes a lot bettexr if you have a
mumber. That's why you have a number. So if you do have
4 response, we're going to go slow and make sure you raise
your number high so that we can get that down for the
¥ecord. That way she doesn't have to go back through and
Ye get everybody's full name every time thexe is a
response to one of the guestions. So please keep that in
mpind. All right. Now, first of all, this is a criminal
¢harge. 1It's a charge against the defendant, Jeffrey
Heith Havard, of capital murder. He's indicted and
dharged with killing and murdering one Chloe Madison Britt
while engaged in the commission of the crime of sexual

hattery. That's the charge. Now, first of all, ladies

U

nd gentlemen, let me tell you this. This is the United

[ s

tates of America, and we have the greatest legal system
and system of justice on the face of the earth. BAnd the
way we do things in this country is when someone is
gharged with a crime, we have a trial here in open court
where the evidence is brought forward in the court, and
jurors such as yourselves, citizens from the community,

gre selected to try the case. The fact that the defendant

[
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has been charged, that he has been indicted, is no

pvidence whatsoever against the defendant. That is simply
the procedure, fhe mechanism, the way the case is brought
Fforward in the Circuit Court for trial. Does everybody
yinderstand me about that? The case is to be decided on

Lthe basis of the evidence that's brought forward in open

¢ourt. The sworn testimony of the witness and any

xhibits that the Court allows to be introduced into
vidence. We don't try people in this country on the
asis of what you may have heard out on the street or
vthing of that naﬁure. The case is to be tried here in
he courtroom. First of all, I realize that there has
een one or more articles in the paper about this case,
nd I realize this is a fairly relatively small community,
étill considering other places, and, again, it's very
important that you understand that a person is not tried
¢n the basis of what may have already appeared in the
paper or someone may have heard. TFirst of all, I am going
to direct my quéstions to this group over here where the
jury box is. First of all, of those of you, the fact thét
there have been one or more articles in'the paper, can
gach of you tell me that you will -- if you're selected to
gerve as a juror, that you will not let that play any part
in your decision in-this case. Can each of you tell me
fhat? You understand what I said? We try the case on the
gvidence up in the courtroom. Can each of you tell me
that?
BY THE JURORS: Yesg, sir.

BY THE COURT: What about this group downstairs over

-y
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here. Can each of you tell me that?

BY THE JURORS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: That you'll disregard anything that
nay have been in the paper about this case? BAnd then,
“inally, this group up here? Can each of you tell me
that? This is very important, ladies and gentlemen. I
realize it's not a whole lot in the paper, but there have
been a couple of articles about it and that has got
fiothing to do with trying this case. First of all, is
there anyone that already knows something about this case,
dther than just the nature of the charge and what may be
ln the paper? Anybody -- I don't know want to know what
You know, but is there aﬁybody that has some information
dlready about this case that knows something about this?
[t may be somebody invoived in the case that you're
related to or close friends to, had talked to you about
the case. First of all, this group over here. Is there

%nybody that already knows something about this case other

=

chan the nature of the charge and what may appear already
in the paper? Aanybody over here?
No response.) |

BY THE COURT: Is there anybody in this group over
here downstairs.
Jurors raise numbers.)

BY THE COURT: Let me get your numbers first. BAs I

¢all your number, you can put your number down. Numbex

forty~six, gixty-one, thirty-one, thirty-three,

fifty-three, thirty-four, fifty-five, thirty-eight,

$ixty—five. Did somebody raise your number over here
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hfter I was through? And up in the top group. Number one
hundred three, one hundred five, seventy-eight,
bighty-two, and eighty-seven. Okay. Now, first of all, I
Hon't want to know what anyone knows, but, first of all,
juror number thirty-one. Mrs. Atwell?

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Johnson, Theodora.

BY THE COURT: Mrs. Jehnson. I1I'm sorry. 1 was
looking at the wrong one. Mrs. Johnson, I don't want to
know what you know, but how do you know something about
this case already?

BY JUROR JOHNSON: I work at Blockbuster.

Bf THE COURT: You work where?

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Blockbuster.

BY THE COURT: Okay. So how do you know something

"about this case already?

BY MR. HARPER: Your Honoxr, may we approach the
bench. I think we can answexr that guestion.

BY MR. CLARK: We can answer that dquestion.
[after a bench conference out of the.hearing of the jury
About someone at Blockbuster being a witness for the
$tate, the following was made of record, to-wit:)

BY THE COQURT: All right. Mrs. Johnson, I
ynderstand that an employee that'works at Blockbustex may
be subpoenaed as a witness in this case, but how is it you
know something about this case already? 1Is it through
this other employee?

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Yes.

BY THE CQURT: Okay. You talked tc this other

gmployee about this case?
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BY JURQR JOHNSON: Yes.

BY THE CQURT: Ckay. And Y don't know what her name

s, but I do understand that there is an employee, and

vhat is her name?

BY JUROR éOHNSON: Nancy Barfoot.

BY THE COURT: Nancy Baifoot. Ckay. Seo you krow

that this co-employee is subpeonaed as a witness in this
case?-

BY JUROR JOHNSON: Yes. BScott -- what's Scott's last

ﬁame? Scott Bandy.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Now, Mrs. Johnson, if you're

elected as a juror, can you decide this case on the basis
f the evidence as brought forward in.this case and not on
asis of what you may have heard from this other employee?
BY JUROR JOHNSON: I don't think_so.
BY THE COURT: If you'll just remain with us right
njow, but that's the way you honestly feel?
BY JUROR JCOHNSON: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: All right. Juror number

P

hirty-three, Mrs. Johnson. It's not necesgary for y'all
o stand up, but if vou will, raise your number high and

just speak out clearly. Mrs. Johnson, how do you know

In

omething this case already?

BY JUROR JOHNSON: I go to Grace United Methodist
Ghurch, and I'm in a class with at least one persoﬁ that's
Heen subpoenaed, Jennifer Ishman and Amanda Goodwin. I
think she's been subpecnaed.

BY THE COURT: Now, my guestions to you. You

understood what I said about it's very important that this
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rase will be decided on the basis of the evidence that'’s
brought forward in courxt. bo you Feel like you can
Aisregard whatever you way have heard about this case and
Hecide this case fairly on the bagis of the evidence in
court?
BY JUROR JOHNSCON: I would try, but we've discussed
it at times during our class.
BY THE COURT: And this other individual is a
#itness, or has been subpoenaed as a witness?
BY JUROR JOHNSON: Yes, sir.
BY THE CQURT: 211 right. Juror number
Fhirty-eight, I believe you raised your number. Mr.
Bales.

BY JUROR BALES: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: How do you know something abéut this
case already?
BY JUROR BALES: My wife is the pastor as Kingston
imited Methodist Church where soﬁe of his relatives go,;
and it's been discussed in various ways there at our
church.
BY THE COURT: 8o have you heard a lot about this case
] ready?
BY JUROR BALES: Even up until yesterday. Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: Do you feel like that if you were
celected, you would be able to disregard that in all
honesty and decide this case on the basis of the law and
Lhe evidence up here in court?
BY JUROR BALES: To be honest with you, no, sir. I

~ouldntt.

[T,




P I

LASEABONO FORMA @  PENGAD « 1-B00- B116983 « wwiw pangad.com

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

éoir Dire - Court ' 120
BY THE COURT: ILadies and gentlemen, 1 can agsure
you, the only thing the Court wants is just the straight,
nonest response that you have to these guestions. Juror
umber forty-six, Mrs. McDaniel. |

BY JURQR MCDANIEL: I'm close with the sheriff's
Hepartment: .

BY THE-COURT: And it would be about kind of -- you
feel like because of that situation -- I believe your
nugband is the chief deputy. It would kind of difficult
For you to totally wipe that all out of your mind; would
et not?

BY JUROR MCDANIEL: Very.

BY THE COURT: And, for the record, I believe her
sband is Bill McDaniel, deputy sheriff. Juror number
Fifty-three, I believe ybﬁ raiged your number. Mrs.
“oley. Amanda Coley.

BY JUROR COLEY: Yes, sir.

BY THE CQURT: Yes, ma'am. How do you know something
about this case already?

BY JUROR COLEY: I am related to the wvictim, Maddie.
BY THE COURT: You're related to who?

BY JUROR COLEY: To the victim, Maddie.

BY THE COURT: We're going to get to that in just a
&inute, but you've already heard a lot about this case
dlready2

BY JUROR COLEY: Most definitely.

BY THE COURT: And because of that, you feel like it
Yyould be difficult for you to be totally fair and

jmpartial in this case?

[P P —
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BY JUROR COLEY: Aabsolutely.

BY THE COURT: 1all right. I appreciate that. Juror
humber f£ifty-four, Mrs. Ward. Where is Mrs. Ward? How do
vou know something about this case already?

BY JUROR WARD: I work at Blockbuster, too.

BY THE COURT: You work at Blockbuster, too.

BY JUROR WARD: Yeah.

BY THE COURT: And you heard this other employee
speak about this case?

BY JURQR WARD: Yes, s8ir.

BY THE COURT: &and you feel like because of that, it
vould be hard for you to be totally fair and impartial in
this case?

BY JUROR WARD: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: She's shaking her head yes. Juror
humber fifty-five, Mrs. Curtis. Yes, ma'am. How do you
<now something about this case?

BY JUROR CURTIS: I work with the schoel district --
BY THE COURT: You need to speak up.

BY JUROR CURTIS: I work with the school district and
beople that are élose to the baby's grandmothers are
talking about it.

BY THE COURTQ You've heard them talking about it at
school?

BY JUROR CURTIS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: You don't feel like you could set that
hside and try this case on the basis of the evidence?

BY JUROR CURTIS: I am not sure.

BY THE COURT: You're not sure. Okay. All right.

P P p—

- -
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Juror number siity—one, I believe raised your number.
Mrs, Townsend. Where is Mrs. Townsend? Did you raise
jyour number?

BY JUROR TOWNSEND: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: How do you know something about this
rase already?

BY JUROR TOWNSEND: The victim's grandmother and I
are co-workers. We teach on the same grade level, and we
interact with each other several times during the course
bf the day.

BY THE COURT: So you've heard a lot about this case
already?

BY JUROR TOWNSEND: Yes, sir.

BY THE CQURT: 2and do you feel like that would make
it difficult for you to be a fair and impartial juror?

BY JURCR TOWNSEND: It would be difficult.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Juror number sixty-five.

Dkay . Yes,.sir. You raised your number. Mr; Young, how
Ho vou know something about this case?

BY JUROR YOUNG: My wife, she works with Mrs. Lynn
Britct, the grandmother.

BY THE COURT: Your wife works with the victim's
hrandmothexr?

BY JUROR YOUNG: Yes, sir.

BY THE CQURT: So have you heard a lot about this
rase through your wife?

BY JUROR YOUNG: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: You feel like that would make it

Hifficult for you to be a totally fair juror in this case?

[T IN T




LASERBONDFORMA (0  PENGAD « 1.500-531-E38¢ » wwweangad om

10

11

12

13

14

15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Voir Dire - Court

BY JUROR YOUNG:

BY JUROR WATTS:

case already?

BY JUROR WATTS:

Fotally fair juror?

BY JUROR WATTS:

pbelieve. Ms. Whitley.

BY JURCOR WHITLEY:

LNowW .

this case --

BY JUROR WHITLEY:

BY JUROR WHITLEY:

BY THE COURT: Okay.

BY THE COURT: Okay.

BY THE COURT: Okay.

Yes.

know something abouft this case?

123

Juror number seventy-eight,

Mrs. Watts. I believe you raised your number. How do you

I am a fellow teacher with Lynn

icnow pretty much about it

Yes.

Pretty hard.

Britt and Mark and Lymnn's daughter, Shannon Rocco, and I

You've heard a lot about this

BY THE COURT: 1In all honesty, you feel like that

vould be kind of -- make it difficult for you to be a

Juror number eighty-two, I

Where is Ms. Whitley? How do you

lcnow somethiﬁg about the case?

Well, to actually really know,

it's from what I read in the péper, but then I sit down
around with friends and things, and we have discussed the

Fage as -- you know -- have heard about the case -- you

BY THE COURT: A1l right. Well, so you feel like

Fhat because of that, that you couldn't sit up here decide

It would be probably -- it would

probably be kind of difficult.

All right.

BY THE COURT: It would be difficult for you?

Ms. Whitley.

—

Pt £ S et
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BY THE COURT: -But, really, you haven't talked to
anybody that has any particular knowledge?

BY JURCR WHITLEY: No, I haven't.

BY THE COURT: Qkay. Number fifty-eight. . Yes,
ma'am. You raised your number? Yes, ma'am. Mrs. Smith.
Hlow do you know something about this casgse already?

BY JUROR SMITH: My sister and brotherxr-in-law is
related to Mrs. Britt.

BY THE COURT: Your sister and brother-in-law is
related to the grandmothexr of the victim?

BY JUROR SMITH: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: So have you talked to them a lot about
this case?

BY JUROR SMITH: Not a lot.

BY.THE COURT: Have you heard any of the details
about this case already?

BY JURCR SMITH: Not --

BY THE COURT: You need to speak up. She said no.

BY JUROR SMITH: No. I haven't heard.

BY THE COURT: 8Sc because of the relationship,
because of what you just explained, do you feel 1like it
would make it difficult for you to be a fair and impartial
juror?

(Juror Smith nods head affirmatively.)

BY THE COURT: You're shaking your head yes. Juror
eighty-seven, Mrs. Knight. Where is Mrs. Knight?
Eighty-eight. I am sorxy -- let's gee. Juror number
eighty-seven, Mrs. Mason. I'm sorry.

BY JURCR MASON: I am a nurse at Natchez Regional

JyS—rTy
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Hospital. 8o I know about the incident that came té the
hospital. I was not directly involved, but I do know
@bout the incident cowming to the hospital.

BY THE COURT: Were you out there at the hospital,

ma 'am, oy involved in any of that?

BY JUROR MASON: No.

BY THE COURT: But have you talked to other people
at: the hospital about this?

BY JUROR MASCN: No. Not really. No.

BY THE COURT: Let me ask you this. 1Is there
anything about what you've heard or anything about that
that you can't set aside and decide this case on the basis
of the law and the evidence?

BY JUROR MASON: No.

BY THE COURT: You could do that? You could do that
[Fairly?

BY JUROR MASON: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: Thank you. All right. Juroxr one
hundred three. Mrs. McIlwain, I believe. ‘Mr. McIllwain.
Yes, sir. |

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: My wife works with the victim's
grandmother out at the hospital.

BY THE COURT: You work with the wvictim's grandmother
at the hospital?

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: My wife.

BY THE COURT: Your wife.

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: Yes, sir.

BY THE CQURT: 8o have you heard a lot of the

details about this case?

i harak b by
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BY JUROR MCILWAIN: A few.
BY THE COURT: Do you feel like that because of what
you've heard, that it would be awful hard to sit and be a
fair juror?
BY JUROR MCILWAIN: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: You do?
BY JUROR MCILWAIN: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: And juror number cne hundred five.
Okay. Yes, sir.
BY JUROR DAVIS: The health care provider told me the
story in detail -- '
BY THE COURT: Who told you this?
BY JURCR DAVIS: Sir?
BY THE COURT: Who told you thig?
BY JUROR DAVIS: A health care provider. A physician
told me what happened and --
BY THE COURT: This was somebody that was involved or
has knowledge about this caae?
BY JUROR DAVIS: Yes, sgir.
BY THE COURT: Do you feel like because of that that
it would be extremely hard for you to be totally fair and
impartial in this case?
BY JUROR DAVIS: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: 1Is anyone else that I haven't --
CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Your Honor, number twenty-four.
BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Number twenty-four. Mrs.
Partridge. How do you know something about this case
already?

" BY JUROR PARTRIDGE: I am not really familiar with

Voir Dire - Court 126
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the case. I just -~ I den't know him personally. 1 was a
roommate of a sister that used to date him.. I am not even
close enough that I know the roommate -- my roommate is
amber Hightower, and he used to date her sister, Heather,
and I'm even sure of her sister's last name. I don't
really know anything about the case.

BY THE COURT: Is there anything about that that
would influence your decision in this case?

BY JURCR PARTRIDGE: Unh-unh.

BY THE COURT: She's shaking her head nc. Who else
raised your number? Anybody else? Okay. Juror number
twenty-two, Mrs. Black. How do you know something about
this case?

BY JUROR BLACK: I work with oné of the witnesseg. 1
work with one of the witnesses that will be called.

BY THE COURT: Is there aﬁything about that that
would influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROR BLACK: Possibly.

BY THE COURT: Has gomebody told you all the details
about this case already?

BY JURCR BLACK: Some.

BY THE COURT: All right. And this is one of -the

witnesses in the case?

BY JUROR BLACK: Yes.

BY THE CQURT: Who is that?

BY JUROR BLACK: Amanda Goodwin.

BY THE COURT: Who else raised your number? Yes,
ma'am. Juror number sixty. Mrs. Scarborough.

BY JUROR SCARBOROUGH: I am friends with the baby's

Voir Dire - Court 127 -
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grandmother, and I had a lengthy discussion with Mrs.
Britt after it happened. Her children_had babysat my
childxen all their 1ives,-and my children were in her
daughter’'s wedding.

BY THE COURT: Sc you've heard a lot about this case
already.

BY JUROR SCARBOROUGH: I haven't talked to her
lately, but, yes. I heard a lot about it right after it
happened.. |

BY THE COURT: Do you feel like it would be difficult
for you to sit down and be totally fair and impartial --

BY JUROR SCARBORCUGH: Extremely difficult.

BY THE CQURT: Okay. Who else? Juror number thirty.

BY JUROR MONTGOMERY: 1 feel like the investigators
have sort 6f done their job, and my mind is kind of made
up on that. I'd like for him to get a fair trial, but I'd
rather not -- you know.

BY THE COURT: You feel like your wind is wade up for
Vhat?

BY JUROR MOMTGOMERY: = As to the decision I would
make .

BY THE COURT: Just from what you're hearing about
the case?

BY JUROR MONTGOMERY: Pretty much. Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: All right. Anyone else that knows
something about the case. Yes, ma‘am. Number
forty-two --

BY JUROR LOGAN: I am a little late raising mine, but

after listening to the others, the only way I was

Voir Dire -~ Court 128
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connected, I do work at Grace Methodist Church one night a
week. Of course, the most I know about it is what I read
in the paper like other people. I am a mother and a
grandmother and great grandmother. So, sure. I was very
moved by it.

BY THE COURT: But .you could --

BY JUROR LOGAN: It would not sway my --

BY THE COURT: You haven't heard any real details
from anyone --

BY JUROR LCGAN: No.

BY THE COURT: -- who knows about the case?

BY JUROR LOGAN: No. But I did want to mention that
I did -- I do work ét Grace Methodist Church, and the baby
was in the daycare there. I never saw the baby, thank
goodness.

BY THE COURT: All right, That's Mrs. Logan.

Anyone else? Juror number seventy-three, Mrs. Wisner.

BY JUROR WISNER: My mother works at the sheriff's
department.

BY THE COURT: OQkay. Have you heard a lot of the
details of this case from her?

BY JUROR WISNER: Not actually. No, sir. It would
probably not affect my decision either, but I would be
willing to do it, but I am pregnant also.

BY THE COURT: All right. And your mother, for the
record, is that Renee Wisner?

BY JUROR WISNER: Renee Wisner.

BY THE COURT: And she works for the sheriff's

office?

B b Arvrstbrs
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BY JUROR WISNER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: And anycne else? Juror number twenty.
ves, ma'am. That's Mrs. Dobbins.

BY JUROR DOBBINS: Yes, sir. I read it in the paper,
bnd because of the nature of it and I had someone in my
Family that was sexually abused, I'm not going to be a

tery fair-minded person. |

BY THE COURT: That's the way you honestly feel.

BY JUROR DOBBINS: I've already made up my mind.

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, let me say this

ow. The guestion I was asking is who has already heard
omething about the deﬁails of this case, and some people
ave expressed that. Ladies and gentlemen, let me say
ghis. I know this is an inconvenience to everybody to

gome extent to be up here, and I know ninety-nine percent

4f you would rather be some place else, and you're up here

Hecause you got a summons through the mail, but, again,
lladies and gentlemen, this is the way our system works.

ﬁow, it's very important that this defendant receive a

(o)

ompletely fair and impartial trial. The State of

Mississippi is entitled to a fair trial also, but we have

[as

o do this according to law. And, you know, we have a
duty as citizens to sit up here and serve on juries. So,
pllease, let's be straight forward and honest about these
ghestions, but let's listen very carefully to what the
Cburt is asking. Is there anybody else that already knows
spmething about this case? Yes, ma'am. Anybody else?
Y&s, ma'am. Juror number ten.

BY JUROR FIOREBLLO: Okay. I know the baby's family,

e

[T
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and I believe he has been at my house before with my
children's friends.

BY THE COURT: This is Mrs. Fiorello.

BY JUROR FIORELLO: Right. With my daughter's
.boyfriend. I think they all kind of hung out, and he's
heen at the house before.

BY THE COURT: So that's kind of a close connection
o this case.

BY JUROR FIORELLO: I know éne of the girls real
rlose.

BY THE COURT: So you've heard a lot about this case
glready?

| BY JURCR FIORELLQO: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: You feel like that would make it
%wfully difficult for you to set that aside?

BY JUROR FIORELLO: Definitely.

BY THE COURT: Anybody else that has already -- juror
ﬂumber twelve, Mrs. Vinesg.

BY JUROﬁ VINES: Yes, sir. I am a.health care
grofessional, and I would probably lean toward witnesses
ghat are health care professionals, and I do not believe I
dould be honest in making a decision.

BY THE COURT: Okay. That's the way you honestly
fleel?

BY JUROR VINES: Uh-hum,

BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am, Juror number thirteen,

M#. Allen.

BY JUROR ALLEN: I feel that T wouldn't be a good

ipror in this case either because of sexual abuse in the

PPN P
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family and different things, and I just wouldn't be a good

'person to --

BY THE COURT: That's the way you honestly feel?
BY JUROR ALLEN: .Yes, sir.
BY THE CQURT: Yes, sir: Juror numbexr eight.

BY JUROR ROUSE: Judge, I know his granddaddy, I

don't think I could get up there and be fair.

BY THE COURT: You know the defendant's grandfathex?
BY JUROR RQUSE: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: And that's pretty strong relationship?
BY JUROR ROUSE: Not a relationship --

BY THE COURT: Pretty close friendship?

BY JUROR ROUSE: Yes. Yes.

BY THE COURT: All right. Anyone else? Juror number
ghirty-four. This is Mrs. Pennington.

BY JUROR PENNINGTON: Yes, sir. I haven't read

1))

nything about it. I don't take the paper, and I don't

watch TV. I have a satellite. I don't get local

dhannels, and I don't know the young man, but I know the

randparents.
BY THE COURT: Okay.

BY JUROR PENNINGTON: No, I feel like I can do -- you

¥now -- what I need to do.

BY THE COURT: You feel 1like you can sit up here and

llisten to the evidence and decide tﬁe case on the basgis of

|

aw and the evidence?

BY JUROR PENNINGTON: Yes. I just wanted you to

know --

BY THE COURT: You do know -~-

roir Dire - Court 132
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BY JUROR PENNINGTON: -- I do know his grandparents.
BY THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. BAnyone else that
hlready knows something about this case?

(No response.)

BY THE COURT: All right. We're already getting

Into the some of this, but I am going to introduce for vou
Lhe defeﬁdant at this time. First of all, this is Mr.
ﬁavard. Mr. Havard, if you don't mind, if you would just
stand up and turn around so that the jurors can see you.
if you'll just stand up, please, Mr. Havard.

[The defendant stands.}

BY THE COURT: This-is the defendant, Mr. Havard.

¢an everybody see him? If you'll have a seat now.

The defgndant sits.)

BY THE COURT: First of all, is anyone that's related

v bloo& or marriage to the defendant, Mr. Jeffrey Keith
avard, would you please raise your number. Anybody
hat's related to him?

No response.)

BY THE COURT: All right. 1Is there anyone who has

ﬁlready spoken up that knows the defendant or his family,
fdlease raise -- that hasn't raised your numbexr already.
Mr. Barnett, number ninety-five.

BY JURCOR BARNETT: I believe this young wman was a

In

tudent at Natchez middle school when I was principal
tthere.

BY THE COURT: You've had quite a few come and go
dver the years.

BY JUROR BARNETT: Yes, gir. I have.
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BY THE COURT: Okay. 1Is there anything about this
that would influence your decision in any way in this
rage?

BY JUROR BARNETT: No, gir.

BY THE COURT: Okay. Who raised your number back
there? Jurcr one hundred three. Mr. McIlwain.

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: He worked out at the plant where
i worked at.

BY THE COURT: The defendant did?

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: 1Is there anything about that? I know
you've spoken up about some other matters already that
you -- I believe you said you know a lot about this case
glready.

BY JUROR MCILWAIN: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: All right. Who else? Juror number
ywenty-eight. Let me start here. Mr. Hamptomn.

BY JUROR HAMPTON: I am acquainted with his

randfather. We attend the same church.

Ile]

BY THE COURT: 1Is there anything about that that
would influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROR HAMPTON: No, sir.

BY THE COURT: Juror number forty-three, Mra. Oten.
BY JUROR OTEN: I'm a former teacher of his.

BY THE COURT: You're a former teacher of hig?

What about that? 1Is there anything that would influence
ypur decision? -

BY JUROR OTEN: No.

BY THE COURT: You know him as being a former

P
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Leacher. Mrs,. Whittington.

BY JUROR WHITTINGTON: I work for an insurance
fompany --

BY THE COURT: You need to speak up.

BY JUROR WHITTINGTON: I work for an insurance
¢ompany and we have his grandparents insured, and I know
them very well.

BY THE COURT: You know his grandparents very well,
And that's through a business relationship 6f working for
4n insurance company.

BY JUROR WHITTINGTON: Yes, sgir.

Wwould be very difficult for you to be fair and sit as a
Juror in this case?
Mrs. Whittington nods head affirmatively.)
BY THE COURT: She's shaking her head vyes.
BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Your Honor, number seven.
BY THE COURT: -Number seven.
BY DEPUTY WISNER: Right here, Judge.
BY THE COURT: I'm sorry. Yes, ma'am. How do you
Hnow the defendant?
BY JUROR JONES: We attended school together and we
yode the same bus.
BY JURCR JONES: Is there anything about that?
BY JUROR JONES: Unh-unh.

BYITHE COURT: Okay. Who else knows the defendant or

Risher.

BY JUROR RISHER: I work at 0ld Scuth Federal Credit

135

BY THE COURT: Because of that, you feel like that it

ﬂis family. Juror number seventy-five. Yes, ma'am. Mrs.

apm e i bk




LASERBCHDO FOIM A (&) PEKOAD » 1.B23-531-637 1 www pangad.com

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Voir Dire - Court

Ynion and both set of grandparents are members there.

BY THE COURT: 1Is there anything about that that
Pould influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROR RISHER: No, sir. Not at all.

BY THE COURT: She said "not at all." Juror number
thirty-six, Mrs. Hill. How do you know the defendant?
BY JUROR HILL: We attended the same school.

BY THE COURT: Went to school togethexr. Is there

nything about that that would influence your decision in

Lo

Yhis case?

BY JUROR HILL: No, sir.

BY THE COURT: Juror number thirty-five. All right.
BY JUROR THOMAS: I don't know too much about the

gase, but I don't think I get a fair judgment because I

']

on't want to have nobody's life in my hands -- you
Hnow -~ the decision of somebody's 1life in my hands. I
don't figure I could be a fair juror --

BY THE COURT: We'xre going to get to that, but you
don't feel like you could be fair about that? _

‘ BY JUROR THOMAS: ©No, really I don't.

BY THE COURT: Is there anyone else that knows the
defendant or his family? |

BY JURCOR SYLVESTER: 1I don't know him, but I had a
rliece to be raped -- you know -- I don't think I could be
flair about it, too.

BY THE COURT: We're going to get to the other.

efendant or his family?

(No response.}

136

Ilet's just take these one at a time. First, who knows the

v e W i
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BY THE COURT: Anybody else that knows the defendant
¢r his family tha; hasn't spoken up already?
(No response. )
BY THE COURT: All right. Now, the alleged victim
in this case is one Chloe Madison Britt. There's already
been some individuals that know the mother or grandmother
&f this alleged victim. Is anybody that hasn't spoken up
£1ready that knew Chloe Madison Britt or any of her
family, would you please raise your number. Juror number
twenty-seven, Mrs. Naff.

BY JUROR NAFF: I am just a teacher in the district,
nd I know who she is -- you know -- I know her, but I

ave not spoken with her about it.

decision in this case?

BY JUROR NAFF: Unh-unh.

BY THE COURT: All right. Mr. Barnett,

.BY JUROR BARNETT: I know the grandmeother. She's a
fteacher in the district.

BY THE COURT: Is anything about that that would
Influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROR BARNETT: No, sir.

BY THE COURT: Anyone else? Yes, ma'am.

BY JUROR PRESCOTT: Do you just want to know if we
ﬂnow them? I mean, do you need to know that? I know the
drandmothexr -~

BY THE COURT: Any type of relatiomship at all --

BY JUROR PRESCOTT: I don't have a relationship, but

1 know who they are.

137

BY THE COURT: Would that have any influence on your
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BY THE CQURT: You know who they are. So that
youldn't influence your decision just knowing who they
are?
BY JUROR PRESCOTT: Right.
BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, at this time, I
am geing to introduce for you the attorneys in this
Tatter. Keep in mind, that the attorneys are
professionals. They're up here doing their job on both
ides of this case. The fact that you may know one or
Iore of these attorneys has got absolutely nothing to do
with this case whatsoever. First of all, representing the
3tate of Mississippi, first, are District Attorney Ronnie
Harper, and also one of his assistants, Tom Rosenblatt.
Rirst of all, is thexe anyone that's related by blood or
By marriage to District Attorney Ronnie Harper. Would you

Hlease raise your mumber. Anybody that's related to him

]

y blood oxr by marriage?

{No xesponse.)

BY THE COURT: Is there anybody that's related by

hloed or by marriage to Tom Rosenblatt, would you please

naise your number. |

(No response.)

BY THE COURT: All xright. Is there anyone that

gither of these two attorneys has either handled a legal

matter before or is handling one now through the district

gdttorney's office, would you please raise your number.
ybody at all.

?Eo response.}

BY THE COURT: Okay. Representing the defendant in

roir Dire - Court - ) 138
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his case are attorney Gus Sermos. This is attorney Gus
ermos and Robert Clark. First of all, is there anyone
hat is related by blcood oxr by marfiage to either one of
hese two attorneys, would you please raise your number.
No responge.)

BY THE COURT: All right. Attorney Gus Sermos has an
ffice in Pike County, Mississippi. He practices in a
umber of counties in this judicial district. 1Is there
nyone that Mr. Sermos.is either handling a legal matter
or now for you or your immediate family or has handled
ne in the past, would you please raise your number. all
ight. This is juror number eighty-seven. Okay. Mrs.
ason. I don't want to know what it is. Is this
omething that was geing on now or in the past?

BY JUROR MASON: -In the past. |

BY THE COURT: Was this for you or for a family
hember?

BY JUROR MASON: Family member.

BY THE COURT: Aand is there anything about that that

=

yould influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROCR MASON: No.

BY THE COURT: Anyone else as to attorney Gus

$ermos. All right. Attorney Robert Clark practices both
Jn Louisiana, across the river, and over here in Adams
founty. Is anyone that Attormey Robert Clark is either
Bandling a legal matter for you or your immediately family
ow or has handled one in the past, would you please raise
your number? Juror number sixty-eight. T don't want to

ﬂnow what this is. This is Mr. Huff. Is this something

ek
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that's over and done with in the past?

BY JUROR HUFF: Yes.

BY THE COURT: How long was that?

BY JUROR HUFF: Eight or ten years.

BY THE COURT: It's been a number of years.

BY JUROR HUFF: Right.

BY THE COURT: Is there anything about that that
yould influence your decision in this case?

BY JUROR HUFF: No.

BY THE COURT: Anybody else that Attorney Roberﬁ
¢lark --

No respeonse.,}

BY THE COURT: Okay. All right. Ladies and

L0

fentlemen, I want you to listen to me carefully. Several

Jjurors have already eluded to this matter, but this is a

0

harge of capital murder, and what that means is that if

tthe defendant is found guilty of capital murder, then one

£

f the possible penalties that may be considered in this
dase would be the-death penalty. Mississippi is a state
fhat has a death penalty as a number of other states do
qnd algo the federal government has. It has been
Hecognized as a constitutional form of punishment. 8o
tlhhis is something that we have in our law. Now, first of
411, I want you to understand this. If the defendant is

fliound guilty of this charge of capital murder, it's never

something that automatically comes about. It is always
something that is submitted separately to the jury to

qgcide on the basis of the law and the evidence to

140

instance in the law where the death penalty is mandated to
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~onsider whether or not the death penalty should be
imposed in the event that the defendant is convicted and
Found guilty of capital murder. ©Now, so it's not
bomething that's automatic. First of all, it's something
that as a juror under your oath that you are to considerx
pn the basis of the law and the evidence. First of all, I
am going to ask this section over here. Is there anybody
that would automatically vote to impose the death penalty
Lf the defendant were found guilty in this case that
ﬁouldn't fairly consider it under the evidence? 8o is
theré anybody that would automatically vote to impose the
death penalty from this group over here in the event that
the defendant was convicted and found quilty of capital
purder?
(No response.)
BY THE COURT: What about this group over here? Does
everybody understand what I am saying? It's not something
that is automatically imposed, and regardless of what your
personal feelings may be, is there anybody that would just
Lutomaticaily vote to impose the death penalty if the
flefendant were found guilty?
[No response. )
BY THE COURT: What about this group up here? Juror
number one hundred five. That's the way you honestly feel
about this?

BY JUROR DAVIS: Uh-hum.

BY THE COURT: And juror number one hundred three.
ow, the other side of this, ladies and gentlemen, is that

realize that the death penalty is something that people

LT
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have very strong feelings about, and the law recognizes
rhat. Now, the fact.that you may have strong feelings
gbout the death penalty, that's all right. That's all
right. But it's very important that if you ;it as a juror
in this case that you follow the law, that you decide the
¢ase on the basis of the law and the evidence, and if the
defendant is found guilty of capital murder, that you be
yvilling to listen to the law and the evidence and to
tonsider the imposition of the death penalty. Now, as I
$aid, I realize that some people have some very strong
feelings about this, énd that's okay. That's
wnderstandable. Now, first of all, on this group over
here, is there anyone that can tell me before you ever
eay any evidence in this case, that you have feelings so
Itrong against the death penalty that you cannot undexr any
tircumstances consider imposing the death penalty? Is
there anybody in this group over here that has such strong
feelings like that? Juror number ten, number four, number
five, and number thirteen. Anybody else in this group
gver here? And just to make sure I understand you, what
You're saying is regardless of what the evidence may be,
you cannot under any circumstances vote to impose the
death penalty? Is that your feelings?
BY THE GROUP QF JURORS: Yes.

BY THE COURT: This group down here at the bottom.

Sl

s anybody -- who feels like that over here? Number
Hwenty-two, twenty-six, thirty, thirty-two -- put your
numbers down when I call them out -- thirty—five,

thirty—eight, thirty-nine, forty-three, forty-four,

[ o)
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fifty-four, sixty-one, fifty-eight, sixty-three,

Bixty-four, sixty-five, and sixty-six. And now up at this
top group. Who is it that feels like that? Under any
Circumstances you just cannot congider imposing the death
penalty under any circumstances? Number eighty-nine,
Beventy-seven, ninety-four, ninety-nine. Is there anyone
rlse? Ladies and gentlemen, each of you raised your
humberg, you're telling this Court under your oath that is
honestly the way you feel? Each of you that raised your
numbers? Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, it's getting close

fo twelve. We're going to be taking a break for lunch in
just a little bit. I do appreciate everybody being

straight forward in your responses because I feel like
bveryone has. And this is a very important matter, a very
serious matter., Now, as I said, we're going to get

!hrough with this selection some time this afterncon, and,
again, those of you that are not selected, you'll be
‘hrough with your jury'service. Now, when we take this -~
Yvelre going to be taking this break in just a moment.
Again, I don't want anybody te have any contact with
anybody about this. You shouldn't be talking with anybody
azbout this case. I know some of you have indicated that
becauge of relationships or who you are related to or know
¢xr work with, that you've already-talked to somebedy about
this case, and that's fine, but during this recess over
the lunch hour, I don't want anybody talking to anyone
about this case. When you come back here -- first of all,
Then you leave, make sure you leave your numbers. The

best way would be just leave them right on your seat. Try
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Lo remember where you're sitting because when we come back
hfter lunch, it's going to be necessary that we do get
everyone back in the same order so that we can -- so that
ve can keep-up with this. I can tell you, I will try to
pove this along just as gquickly as we can, but this is a
very sericus matter, and it's very important that it be
done absolutely according to the law and in a completely
Fair and impartial manner. There are stili -- the
attorneys for each side will be allowed to ask you further
?uestions. So that's why we're just going to recess at
this point. I want to give you plenty of time to get
gomething to eat. I am going to ask that everybody be
back by 1:15. By 1:15. Are there any other matters we
need to take up over the lunch time?

BY MR. HARPER: Not that I am aware of, Your Honor.

BY MR. SERMOS: Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT: I tell you what, ladies and gentlemen.
am going to say 1:30. We're going to recess until 1:30.
Wow, again, keep in wind what I said. Keep in mind that
these depﬁties{ these attorneys, they're not going to be
Jpeaking to you because they're under very strong rules of

gourt. So please keep that in mind. Alse you may have

Ll

toticed. I have a policy I go by. I don't care for
g¢verybody jumping up and down every time the judge come in
gr goes out of the courtroom. I just do that one time at
Jhe beginﬁing of the morﬁing and that's because I usually
gpen court with a prayer. I feel like.that our court need
Jots of prayers these days. Please keep that in mind, and

do let's please have everybody back here at one -- yes,

rx e bl gl e ai




LASER BOMD FORM A @ PEHGAD v 118006316467 » vrwrwpangad.com

10

11

12

13
14
15
1s
17
18
13
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

oixr Dire - Couxrt 145
a'am.

BY JUROR MARTIN: What do you do if you're taking
nedication?
'BY THE COURT: Medication. All right. If you'll
come down here, but everybody else, let's please be back
here at 1:30‘so we can promptly begin at that time and
we'll move forward.
(Jurors are excused for lunch.)
BY THE COURT: Is this Mrs. Martin?
BY JUROR MARTIN: Yes.
BY THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. You tell me you're taking
nedicatibn?
BY JUROR MARTIN: Yes.
BY THE COURT: What kind of medication?
BY JUROR MARTIN: Diabetic pills, fluid pills, blood
%ressure pills, pain pills.

BY THE COURT: Because of that, you'd feel like you'd
ave a hard time sitting up here --

BY JUROR MARTIN: Just naﬁseated because 1 have Back
problems.
BY THE COURT: Dc you work anywhere?
BY JUROR MARTIN: No. : !
BY THE COURT: You just stay at home.
BY JUROR MARTIN: Yes, sir.
BY THE COURT: Who's your doctoxr?
BY JUROR MARTIN: Dr. McArthur.
BRY THE COURT: OQkay. Ma'am, I tell you what. I'm
going to let you go. This is Mrs. Marjorie Martin, right.

You can go.

R T——
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BY JUROR MARTIN: Thank you.

BY Tﬂﬁ COURT: Let the record show that the Court is
joing to excuse juroxr number ninety-nine. This is Mrs.
Marjorie Martin. If you may recall, she raised her number
before we took the first break and said she needed to
Hiscuss with me about medication. She has come forward to
"he bench now, and she is taking just a tremendous amount
bf medication, is under a doctor's care. She doesn't
work. She's at home. She's having a little difficulty
now. So I am going to excuse her for medical reasons.
rhey are very clear to the Court, and she's taking all
kind of pills and medication. That's juror number
hinety-nine.

(After a lunch recess from approximately 12:00 until 1:30,
the following was made of record, to-wit:)

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, as I said
previously, part of the voir dire process will be for the
attorneys also to ask you questions. Seo at this time, I
gm going to allow that to happen. BAgain, I want to
encourage you to please answer the questions honestly. If
you should give a response, please give a response to the
uestion that was asked of you, and, again, hold up your
humber so that we can get it and be sure to speak out loud
enough so that the court reporter can take it down. So at
this time, the Court is going to allow further wvoir dire
by the State, Mr. Harper, I would ask that you try not to
go back through the same area that the Court covered.
Also, I don't want the juroxs instructed on what the law

1 s. Ladies and gentlemen, the Court will do that at the

kb
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proper time. Mr. Harper, you may go ahead and proceed.

BY MR. HARPBER: May it please the Court, Your
Honor?

BY THE COURT: Yes, sir.
BY MR. HARPER: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.
ns his Honor Judge Johnson has told you, my name is Ronnie
Harper. I have the honor and privilege of serving ag your
district attorney, and I, along with Tom Rosenblatt, one
of your assistant district attorneys, will be representing
khe People of the State of Mississippi in this case-today.
In a criminal case, which is what we're here on today, it
is the State of Mississippi, the People of the State of
Mississippi versus the defendant, as they are charged with
biolating a law, a criminal law or criminal statute of the
Ctate. When I stood up here, there was a note on my table
-hat said "slow." That's from the court reporter because
I have a bad tendency tc get in a hurry. So y'all bear
with me and I'll try to slow down. I'll try not to take
any longer that I absolutely have to, but I do want to try
to accommodate hexr. As the Judge told you, -Mrs. Murray is
the official court reporter, and it's her duty and
bbligation to record everything that we do here today.
This is what's called a court of record which means that
everything that happens in hexre has to be recorded. As
you can see, she has a tape recorder, and she also has
this little machine here that she uses that I wouldn't
have any idea how to operate, but at any rate, if y'all
will bear with us and if you will answer out loud. If I

ask questiong or if you'll hold your number up so that we
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Can be sure to see it and that I can slowly read them off
for her so that she'll be able to get those down. Will
81l of you do that for me?

BY THE JURQRS: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Speak up for me, now.

BY THE JURORS: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: Thank you. Now, the Judge has told
bou a little bit about this case. I'm geing to give you a
tittle more information. I don't want to go into a lot of
fetail about it, but, this case, as the Court has tolgd
you, is the State of Mississippli versus Jeffrey Keith
Havard. He is charged with capital murdex, and what he
is, in essence, charged with is committing a murder while
in the act of committing another crime, that being sexual
pattery. The wvictim in this case was a child, a
six-month-old child by the name of Chloe Madison Britt.

[t cccurred on February 21st of 2002 at somewhere between

pine and 9:40 p.m. on that date. Primarily the allegation

'Is and we would attempt to prove that it happened at 33

dontgomery Road in the Cloverdale subdivision here in

pdamg County, Missgissippi. The child was transported to

che Natchez Community Hospital and was either DOA oxr I
Lhink they did some resuscitation attempts there, and she

vas declared to be deceased at the hospital. Having told

You that, I know several people raised their hands if they

nave heard anything about it. Is there anybody that
remembers now that they may have heard something about it

Fhat didn’'t remember before about what information they

have? Anyone? Thank you.

[PTY PR R
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BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: Ronnie?

BY MR. HARPER: Do you have one?

BY CIRCUIT CLERK VINES: You've got two.

BY MR. HARPER: I apologize. I think this is the
firgt time I have every tried to do this with jurors in
the balcony. S0 y'all bear with me. Number eleven,
number ninety-one, seventy-nine, eighty, eighty-one,
ninety-four, and ninety-eight. Okay. Well; the Judge had
fasked is anyone -- I won't go in any detail with any of
you specifically because he asked this morning about how
people had heard about it. Is anycne that heard about it
other than just reading about it in the paper? Anybody
hear about it -- number one hundred five. That’'s Mr.
Davig; is that right, sir?

BY JUROR DAVIS: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: How did you hear about it, Mr. Davis?
BY JUROR DAVIS: From a physician.

BY MR. HARPER: I believe yvou mentioned that earlier;
did you not?

BY JUROR DAVIS: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: Number ninety-eight. How did you
fhear it?

BY JUROR BERRY: From my wife that works for a
physician.

BY MR. HARPER: Okay. 1 know there's been a lot of
talk about this case and a lot of publicity.

Cne hundred three. Can all of you that raised your
numbers, and I will try not to do this and belabor this.

Is there anyone that raised youxr number that feels like

Voir Dire - Harper 149
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you can't disregard whatever you've heard about this case
and base your decision today solely on the evidence as you-

hear it from the witness stand? Anyone? Ninety-eight,

bne hundred five, and one hundred three, and number

Fhirteen. I believe you -- and number gsixty-one. I may
e geﬁting some people that raiged their number before.

s these all new people? If you raised your number
before, I think we pretty much asked you about those.

1'11 just ask if there's anyone.else that had heard about
it . Nﬁmber ninety-eight. You're Mr. -- bear with me.

Mr. Berry; is that right?

BY JUROR BERRY: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: And you feel like you would have a
broblem with that, Mr. Berry?

BY JUROR BERRY: Yes, I would.

BY MR. HARPER: You say vou talked to your wife. She
nad talked -- was she a witness to it or did she just hear
hbout it?

BY JUROR BERRY: Well, my baby go to the same doctor
“hat examiﬁed the baby at the hospital, and we heard --
/ol know -- stories from that.

BY MR. HARPER: You feel like based on that, you
wouldn't be able to put that aside and base your decision
BY JUROR BERRY: No, sir,

BY MR. HARPER: You feel like it would cause you

problems in being able to be fair and impartial.

BY JUROR BERRY: Yes, sir.

BY MR. HARPER: Thank you, sir. Now, again, 1 am

[T AT TR SRR
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